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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9443 1-800452-3345 EiL 9443

Fax: 603-271-1912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.dbhs.nh.gov

June 8.2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into Sole Source contriacts with the vendors listed below in an amount not to exceed
$6,299,383 to provide public guardianship services, with the option to renew for up to two (2)
additional years, effective July 1. 2020, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is
later, through June 30, 2022. 2% Federal Funds. 98% General Funds.

Vendor Name
Vendor

Code
Area Served Contract Amount

Office of Public Guardian 166528-B001 Concord, NH $4,900,419

Tri-County Community
Action Program

177195-B009

1

Berlin, NH $1,398,964

Total: $6,299,383

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the ai^ority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

SEE ATTACHED FISCAL DETAILS

05-95-92-922010-4114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES,
GUARDIANSHIP SVCS

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $3,019,644.50

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $3,019,644.50

Subtotal $6,039,289.00



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT, HHS: ELDERLY & ADULT SVCS DIV, GRANTS FOR SOCIAL SVC PROG. SOCIAL
SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 48130201 $130,047

2022 102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc 48130201 $130,047

Subtotal $260,094

Total $6,299,383

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the vendors are the only vendors able to provide
the necessary services. RSA 547-B establishes the Public Guardianship and Protection Program
for guardianship services to be provided per NH RSA 135-0:60 and NH RSA 171-A:10. NH RSA
547-B:6 requires the Department to contract with one or more organizations that the New
Hampshire Supreme Court has designated as a public guardianship and protection program. The
Office of Public Guardian and Tri-County Community Action Program are the only organizations
the New Hampshire Supreme Court has designated as public guardianship and protection
programs.

The purpose of this request is to provide guardianship services, statewide, for up to 1092
individuals with mental Illness or developmental disabilities, as well as incapacitated adults who
are abused, neglected or exploited, leaving them at risk of substantial harm because of their
inability to provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their personal
affairs.

These services are necessary to meet the State's statutory obligations to safeguard
incapacitated individuals who are in state institutions as well as In community mental health and
developmental service programs, statewide. Services provided ensure that the guardianships are
maintained and limited in accordance with the standards embodied in RSA 464-A from July 1,
2020 to June 30, 2022.

Contracted services include mentoring and training services for family members who are
willing to serve as guardian but >tfho require a period of support. Providing this support will obviate
the need for a public guardian in these cases, which results in a fiscal savings due to not needing
to er>gage permanent public guardianship services.

Approval of the Contracts will allow the vendors to provide protection services on a
statewide basis. These Contracts also meet the requirements of NH RSA 135-C:60, NH RSA 171-
A: 10, II and NH RSA 161-F:52. The vendors agree to seek reimbursement from other payer
sources, including sodai security, when providing protection services.

The attached Contracts include language that resenres the right to renew each contract
for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory
performance of contracted services and Governor and Executive Council approval.
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Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the Department would be out
of compliance with the requirements of NH RSA 135-C: 60; NH RSA 171-A: 10, II; and NH RSA
161-F: 52. Additionally, individuals with mental illness, developmental disabilities and
incapacitated adults who are abused, neglected or exploited, would be left at risk of substantial
harm because of their inability to provide their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage
their personal affairs.

Areas served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.667, FAIN #2001NHSOSR75

The Department will request General Funds In the event that Federal Funds are no longer
available and services are still needed.

Respectfully sub

.ori A. Shibinett*

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citisens to achieve health and independence.



Financial Detail

05-95-92-922010-4114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF. HHS:BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV OF,

BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, GUARDIANSHIP SVCS

Office of Public Guardian

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Amount Increase/fDecroasel Revised Amount

2021

Contracts for Program

Services
102-500731 $0.00 $2,320,162.50 $2,320,162.50

2022

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731 $0.00 $2,320,162.50 $2,320,162.50

Subtotal SO.OO $4,640,325.00 $4,640,325.00

TrI-Countv Community Action Program

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Amount IncreaseffDecrease) Revised Amount

2021

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731 $0.00 $699,482.00 $699,482.00

2022

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731 $0.00 $699,482.00 $699,482.00

Subtotal $0.00 $1,396,964.00 $1,398,964.00

05-95-46-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS:ELDERLY - ADULT SERVICES,

GRANTS TO LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Office of Public Guardian

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Amount Increase/fDecrease) Revised Amount

2021

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500734 $0.00 $130,047.00 $130,047.00

2022

Contracts for Program
Services

102-500734 $0.00 $130,047.00 $130,047.00

Subtotal $0.00 $260,094.00 $260,094,00

Grand Total $0.00 $6,299,383.00 $6,299,383.00
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FORM NUMBER P-S? (vcnion 12/11/2019)

Sttbject:_Guardianship Services (SS-2021-DBH-0I-GUARD-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of itsattadiments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that Is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshlroand the Contractor haeby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Dq>artment of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Office of Public Guardian

1.4 Contractor Address

2 Pillsbury Street, Suite 400
Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)224-8041

1.6 Account Number

05-95-92-922010-4114-

102-500731

05-95-48-481010-9255-

102-500734

1.7 Completion Date

June 30,2022

1.8 Price Limitation

$4,900,419

1.9 Contracting Officer for State AgehQr

Nathan D. Whlte^ Director

1.10 State Agen^ Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.1 ̂ -^ntractQcSigni^e

V  ■' - Date:

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

lA^r^Sme Agency Signpttfre 1.14 Name and Title ofState Agency Signatory

V'l5 Approval t^^e N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel ^ df^llcahle)
By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attomey General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable) ^

Catherine Pinos 06/08/20
1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council 0/oppbbable)

O&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency Identified in block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B \^ich is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

N

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contr^, and subject to the approval of the Govemor and
Executive Council ofthe State ofNew Hampshire, Ifapplicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations ofthe parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the GoverncM* and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated In block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affiscted by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such fbnds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
tenninate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds fi-om any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset fi-om any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
throu^ RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total ofall payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth In block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or du^ upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreemmt is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employes or applicants for employment
because ofrace, color, religicm, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any ofthe Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose ofascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services^ and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or oflficial, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
Contractor Initials

Date



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring It to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification oftime, thirty (30) days from the
date ofthe notice; and ifthe Event of De&ult is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which , would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of De&ult

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Caitractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defoult, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Defoult on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising Its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those ofany Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within IS days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page 3

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFBDENTULITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, gr^hic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchas^ with fUnds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 9I-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

U. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is In all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets ofthe Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice, and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. No^thstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity ofthe State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor ^all, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than 31,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. D^artment of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State ofNew Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
Identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all Insurance required under this Agreement
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
In block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
Insurance policy. The certificate(s) of Insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.R RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation In connection with
activities N^frlch the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
Identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation In the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, ̂ stage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given In
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an Instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed In accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and Is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement Is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified In EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any ofthe provisions ofthis
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

EXHIBIT A 5^1

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form p-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows;

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement "to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on July 1,
2020 ("Effective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional year(s)
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties*, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

SS-2021-DBH-01-GUARO-01 Exhibit A - Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions Contractor tnltlais,

curOHHS/121019 Pago 1 of 1 Date i?'S'7^2P



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

EXHIBITS

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. Scope of Work Applicable to all Guardianship Services

1.1.1. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall mean
calendar days.

1.1.2. For the purposes of this agreement ward shall mean the individual for
whom guardianship of the individual and/or estate is appointed by the
Circuit Court - Probate Division.

1.1.3. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship and protection services
to safeguard the liberty and well-being of individuals who, because of
functional limitations, have suffered, are suffering, or are likely to suffer
substantial harm due to an inability to:

1.1.3.1. Provide personal needs for food, clothing, shelter, health
care or safety: or

1.1.3.2. Manage their property or financial affairs.

1.1.4. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship and protection services
to persons at risk of harm to themselves, their estates or both the person
and estate, for whom the State of New Hampshire has a responsibility
to safeguard pursuant to New Hampshire (NH) Revised Statutes
Annotated (RSA) 135-C:60, Guardianship: NH RSA 161-F:52,
Guardianship; and NH RSA 171-A:10, Residential Services; Legal
Counsel and Guardianship.

1.1.5. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship services to persons in
Section 1.1.4, statewide, in accordance with NH RSA 464-A, Guardians
and Conservators and NH RSA 547-B, Public Guardianship and
Protection Program, which include appointments as guardian,
conservator, or temporary guardian of the person and/or estate of a
ward.

1.1.6. The Contractor will provide protection services to persons in Paragraph
1.1.4, statewide, that include actions necessary to carry out the duties
as a duly designated representative or protective payee; client
representative; attorney-in-fact; or other similar agent, as prescribed by
applicable law, rule, or agreement.

1.1.7. The Contractor shall provide services to individuals only upon receiving
prior approval from the Department of Health and Human Services,
Office of Client and Legal Services or the Bureau of Elderly and Adult
Services.

1.1.8. The Contractor shall refer clients to the Disability Rights Center - NH,
the New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other attorney when referrals

Office of Public Guardian Contractor initials

SS-2021-DBH-01-GUARD-01 Page 1 of 9 Dale



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

EXHIBIT B

55

from the Department's Office of Client-and Legal Services , for
guardianship and protection services may be inappropriate, in order that
an administrative appeal, or other appropriate legal action, can be taken
on behalf of the client.

1.1.9. The Contractor shall direct any referrals for individuals made to the
Contractor for guardianship and protection services to the Department's
Office of Client and Legal Services when referrals are received from
agencies that include, but are not limited to:

1.1.9.1. The Glencliff Home for the Elderly;

1.1.9.2. New Hanipshire Hospital;

1.1.9.3. Community agencies in the mental health system;

1.1.9.4. Agencies in the developmental services system; and

1.1.9.5. Agencies in the adult and elderly system.

1.1.10. The Contractor shall not be reimbursed by the Department for services
in the event the Contractor provides guardianship and protection
services to individuals who are not screened and approved by the
Department's Office of Client and Legal Services or Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services, unless the Contractor:

1.1.10.1. Provides documentation satisfactory to the Department that
circumstances not within the control of the Contractor

occurred and the Contractor made reasonable efforts to

decline the guardianship appointments.

1.1.10.2. Includes documentation of the efforts made to decline

guardianship appointments with its monthly invoices.

1.1.10.3. The State has responsibility to safeguard the person
pursuant to RSA 135-C:60. RSA 171-A:10, II, and RSA 161-
F:52.

1.1.11. The Contractor shall provide guardianship and protection services to
individuals as defined in paragraph 1.1.4, in accordance with the
"Standards of Practice" and "A Model Code of Ethics for Guardians"

developed by the National Guardianship Association.

1.1.11.1. Notwithstanding the ethics and standards for guardians cited
in Paragraph 1.1.11, for monthly visits, the Contractor shall
make quarterly face-to-face visits with the ward or more
frequent visits as required in individual circumstances, in
accordance with Contractor's accepted practice.

1.1.11.2. The Contractor shall attempt to have a video conference, or
telephone contact if technology for a video conference is not

Office of Public Guardian Contractor Initials
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available, with the ward in the instance the ward is out of the
State of New Hampshire for an extended period of time and
it would not be feasible for the Contractor to see the ward

face to face on the basis outline in Section 1.1.11.1 above.

1.1.11.3. The Contractor may suspend face-to-face visits, as required
in Section 1.1.11.1 until an alternative plan can be developed
that maintains personal safety of all parties, if the ward

exhibits unsafe behavior or is in unsafe environmental or

public health conditions, or is aggressive to the point of
physical harm to the Contractor.

1.1.12. In any action brought In Circuit Couii-Probate Division to limit or
otherwise reduce the scope of a guardianship over an individual served,
the State shall appear with the Contractor where the State agrees that it
is necessary to present the State's position on the action proposed.

1.1.13. The Contractor shall not provide individuals with direct services, which
include:

1.1.13.1. Psychotherapy;

1.1.13.2. Case rnanagement;

1.1.13.3. Transportation;

1.1.13.4. Financial aid; or

1.1.13.5. Other social services available through governmental or
nonprofit agencies.

1.1.14. The Contractor agrees to work closely with the Bureau of Elderly and
Adult Services Adult Protection Social Workers for a period, to be
determined by the level of need following a referral, to support the
client's transition from protection services provided by the State" to
guardianship services provided by the Contractor. The Contractor
agrees that the Department's Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services,
Adult Protection Service Social Workers retains the case management
function of the clients during the transition period.

1.1.15. The Contractor has responsibilities as an independent decision-maker
acting in a fiduciary capacity with respect to the individuals served and
the decisions to be made on behalf of individuals shall not be directed

or influenced by the State.

1.1.16. The Contractor may provide guardianship and protection services to
individuals other than those who are referred for services pursuant to
this Agreement, ensuring:

1.1.16.1. Pursuant to NH RSA 547 8: 7, no funds provided under this
Agreement are expended for those persons.

Office of Public Guardian Contractor Initials
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1.1.16.2. Sufficient records, which are subject to the Department's
examination, are included and clearly document that the
funds received under this Agreement are expended in.
accordance with this Agreement.

1.1.17. The Contractor shall accept and investigate complaints from the
Department regarding services performed, including the circumstances
pertaining to the complaint, and ensure a written response containing
the results of the Investigation Is submitted to the Department no later
than thirty (30) days from the date the complaint is received by the
Contractor.

1.1.18. The Contractor shall allow wards to participate in consumer satisfaction
surveys unless the Contractor provides written reasons to the
Department that state why a particular ward should not be allowed to
participate.

1.1.19. The Contractor agrees that if the performance of services involves the
collection, transmission, storage, or disposition of data on behalf of the
Department including substance use disorder (SUD) data created by a
Part 2 provider, the Contractor shall maintain the data subject to the
requirements.stated in 45 CFR Part 2.

1.2. Guardianship Services

1.2.1. The listing and description of services to be provided to wards are not
intended to restate existing rules and regulations currently in place, but
rather to^ clarify the relationship of the Contractor with respect to Its
wards who need and receive services in the developmental services;
mental health services; or.elderly and adult systems.

1.2.2. The Contractor agrees that all of the responsibilities referenced in
Subsection 1.2 are contingent upon the actual authority granted in each
individual court order specifying the extent and scope of guardianship
for each individual ward.

1.2.3. The Contractor shall make decisions regarding the residential and day
placement of each ward, utilizing:

1.2.3.1. The standards of least restrictive environment; and

1.2.3.2. What is in the best interests of the individual ward.

1.2.4. The Contractor shall ensure all legally necessary steps are taken to
enable the individual ward to receive comprehensive:

1.2.4.1. Evaluations; and

1.2.4.2. Treatment and services.
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1.2.5. The Contractor shall advocate for and request all necessary and
appropriate services to which the ward is entitled in accordance with:

1.2.5.1. The ward's service and/or treatment plan;

1.2.5.2. The ward's expressed preferences or best interests
consistent with the Contractor's Code of Ethics and National
Guardianship Association Standards of Practice; and

1.2.5.3. Established Department standards and State law, including
seeking alternative service providers.

1.2.6. The Contractor shall be available to give or withhold consent to
proposed care, when legally necessary, which includes, but is not limited
to:

1.2.6.1. Medical care;

1.2.6.2. Professional care;

1.2.6.3. Counseling;

1.2.6.4. Treatment:

1.2.6.5. Behavioral health services;

1 ;2.6.6. Changes to service and/or treatment plans; and

1.2.6.7. Other clinically or legally significant treatment plans or
services.

1.2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the ward's civil rights are protected within
the context of the decision-making on behalf of the ward, while refraining
from unwarranted intrusion into the life of the ward.

1.2.8. The Contractor shall be available to make all decision as required by
RSA 464-A:26 and work collaboratively with the Department relative to
any of the ward's debts owed to the State of New Hampshire, if the
Contractor is guardian of the ward's estate.

1.2.9. The Contractor shall remain current of the facts or circumstances that
may impact the decisions to perform the functions specified in
Subsection 1.2.

1.2.10. The Contractor shall maintain appropriate contact with each ward to
ensure services reflect the personal preferences, values, and desires of
the ward to the fullest extent possible in order to make informed
decisions on behalf of the ward.

1.2.11. The Contractor shall obtain all available information regarding the ward
or the ward's situation in order to be fully aware of all risks and benefits
of any proposed course of action, as well as any alternatives that may
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exist when making decisions on behalf of the ward. The Contractor, in
addition to having required personal contact with the ward, may:

1.2.11.1. Contact other important and significant people in the ward's
life.

1.2.11.2. Interact with the ward's case manager.

1.2.11.3. Interact with others who share responsibility for meeting the
needs of the ward.

1.3.Guardianship and Protection Services

1.3.1. The Contractor shall accept all protection services cases referred by the
Department's Offipe of Client and Legal Services or Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services.

1.3.2. The Department shall make every attempt to obtain a Release of
Information from the proposed client for the Contractor, except where
prohibited from doing so by law.

. 1 ;3.3. The Contractor shall be involved in the screening process for protection
cases, as appropriate, or refer the client to the Disability Rights Center -
NH, New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other attorney In order that an
administrative appeal or other appropriate legal action can be taken on
behalf of the client.

1.3.4. ■ For persons referred to Contractor by the Department's Office of Client
and Legal Services pursuant to NH RSA 136-C:60 and NH RSA 171-
A:10 II, the Contractor shall serve the current total of 732 wards
receiving guardianship services as well as any new persons referred for
services, in accordance with Paragraph 1.1.7 above, for a total of up to
770 cases during the contract period.

1.3.5. The Contractor shall receive letters of approval for each new case
assigned to the Contractor by the Department's Office of Client and
Legal Services.

1.3.6. The Contractor shall provide guardianship services for no more than 42
persons, as referred by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services

. pursuant to NH RSA 161-F:52, at any point in time during the contract
period.

1.3.7. The Contractor shall schedule a training with New Hampshire Hospital
no later than November 15, 2020, which shall:

1.3.7.1. Address the roles and responsibilities of:

1.3.7.1.1. The Contractor;

1.3.7.1.2. New Hampshire Hospital; and
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1.3.7.1.3. Community agencies.

1.3.7.2. Address the legal and ethical obligations and limitations of
the Contractor.

1.3.7.3. Develop best practices relative to service planning in order to
facilitate discharge of patients as soon as practicable.

1.4. Technical Assistance

1.4.1. The Contractor may provide technical assistance to private guardians or
training to staff that provide direct services to wards who are clients of
the Department, which includes:

1.4.1.1. Area agency staff; and

1.4.1.2. Mental health staff.

1.4.2. The Contractor shall provide the technical assistance or training
described in Paragraph 1.4.1, only after receiving confirmation from the
private guardian or the agency staff that specifies the Office of Client
and Legal Services approved specified number of hours for technical
assistance or training over a period not to exceed six (6) months.

1.4.3. The Contractor may provide technical assistance for up to ten (10)
private guardians per year.

1.5. Staffing

1.5.1. The Contractor shall ensure staff providing guardianship services
successfully complete a minimum of 20 hours of orientation training.

1.5.2. The Contractor shall ensure staff providing guardianship services
successfully complete a minimum of 10 hours of continuing education,
annually.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of'Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

Office of Public Guardian Contraclor Initials _

SS-2021-DBH-01-GUARD-01 Page 7 of 9 Date fc'S-jgjP



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

EXHIBIT B

3.1. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports of all written complaints filed
against the Contractor, which includes:

3.1.1. A copy of the written complaint.

3.1.2. Steps taken to resolve the complaint.

3.1.3. The date that the complaint was resolved.

3.1.4. Steps to be taken in the following quarter to mitigate similar complaints
^  from being filed in the future.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide an annual report, no later than August 1®' that
identifies names of guardians providing services with the number of continuing
education hours obtained over the previous 12 month, ensuring supporting
documentation is available for Department review upon request.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.'

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Chianges

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services described
herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2.Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of
the language assistance services they will provide to persons with
limited English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days
of the contract effective date.

5.3.Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.3.1., In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license
or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and conditions of

Office of Public Guardian Conlraclor Initials

SS-2021-DBH-01-GUARO-01 Page 8 of 9 Dale



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

EXHIBIT B

each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing
requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during
the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all rules, orders,
regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire.Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local
building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

8. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

■ 6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor tirne cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the'Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall Include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

6.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment'of the price
limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder
(except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after
the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract)
shall terhiinate, provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure
Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct
the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the
Contractor.
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Pavment Terms

1. This Agreement Is funded by:

1.1. 97% General funds.

1.2. 3% Federal funds, Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Families, Social Services Block Grant
CFDA #93.667, FAIN #2001NHSOSR75

2. - For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient, In
accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

2.2. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies In accordance with 2
CFR §200.414.

2.3. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

3. The State shall pay the Contractor a per diem, per case rate for services
provided In fulfillment of this Agreement in accordance with the per diem rates
as follows:

3.1. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over
the person services or guardianship over the estate services, as
approved by the Office of Client and Legal Services for all Bureau of
Mental Health Services or Bureau of Developmental Services wards,
shall be $8.25 per ward, per day, for up to 770 wards, as follows:.

3.1.1. The per diem rate shall be $8.25 per ward per day for
guardianship over the person services.

3.1.2. The per diem rate shall be $8.25 per ward per day for
guardianship over the estate services.

3.1.3. In the instance when the Contractor is the guardian over the
person and guardian over the estate of a ward, the Department
shall reimburse the Contractor for each service in accordance

with 3.1.1 and 3.1.2 above.

3.2. The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of training in Exhibit 8
Section 1, Subsection 1.4, and Paragraph 1.4.1 shall be $60.00, not to
exceed 25 hours for a total amount of $1,500.00.

3.3. The per dtem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over
the person services or guardianship over the estate services as
requested by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services shall be $8.25,
per ward, per day, for up to 42 wards, as follows:

3.3.1. The per diem rate shall be $8.25 per ward per day for

Office of Public Guardian Exhibit C Contractor Inllials
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guardianship over the person services.

3.3.2. The per diem rate shall be $8.25 per ward per day for
guardianship over the estate services.

3.3.3. In the instance when the Contractor is the guardian over the
person and guardian over the estate of a ward, the Department
shall reimburse the Contractor for each service In accordance

with 3.3.1 and 3.3.2 above.

3.4. The per diem rates will be extended to the last day of the month following
the month in which the ward dies or for whom guardianship service are
terminated.

3.5. For wards referred for guardianship services by the Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services, the actual cost paid by Contractor for expenses
incurred in the performance of Contractors duties for guardianship over
the estate under this Agreement, including, but not limited to, filing fees,
bond costs and appraisal fees where no other source of reimbursement
exists, shall not exceed $3,574.50.

4. Payment to the Contractor for the provision of services requested by the
Department's Bureaus of Mental Health Services or Developmental Services
shall be made on a monthly basis subject to the following conditions:

4.1. The Contractor shall submit invoices on a monthly basis in accordance
with procedures and instructions established by the Office of Client and
Legal Services and provided to the Contractor.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit a list of wards served during the month with
the monthly invoice.

4.3. The Department shall pay the Contractor in accordance with the pef
diem rates identified in Section 3.

4.4. The Contractor may be compensated for time spent traveling and
appearing in the Circuit Court-Probate Division preceding appointment,
as follows:

4.4.1. The hourly rate of $60.00 shall be billed using a six (6) minute
unit by submitting a monthly invoice that details the actual time
spent.

4.4.2. The maximum billable amount for each case preceding
appointment by the Circuit Court-Probate Division shajl be
$300 per case.

4.5. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the court notice to the Department
with the monthly invoice when the Contractor is appointed guardian over
the person and/or guardian over the estate and when the Contractor no
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longer provides guardianship over the person and/or estate.

4.6. The Contractor shall review cases referred by the Office of Client and
Legal Services on a monthly basis and transfer individuals to a different
funding mechanism, if possible, to allow more openings for additional
referrals from the Office of Client and Legal Services.

4.7. The Contractor shall transfer the ward from the Office of Client and Legal
Services funded slot within sixty (60) days of alternate funding becoming
available.

5. Payment to the Contractor for the provision of services requested by the
Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services (BEAS) shall be made on a monthly basis
subject to the following conditions:

5.1. The Contractor shall submit invoices on a monthly basis in accordance
with procedures and instructions established by the Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services and provided to the Contractor.

5.2. ■ The Contractor shall submit a list of wards served during the month with
the monthly invoice.

5.3. The Department shall pay the Contractor in accordance with the per
diem rates identified in Section 3.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the court notice to the Department
with the monthly invoice when the Contractor is appointed guardian of a
person and/or guardian over the estate and when the Contractor no
longer provides guardianship over the person and/or the estate.

5.5. The Contractor shall review cases on a monthly basis and transfer •
individuals to a different funding mechanism, if possible, to allow more
openings for additional referrals from BEAS.

5.6. The Contractor shall transfer wards from a BEAS funded slot within sixty
(60) days of alternate funding becoming available.

6. The Contractor shall seek reimbursement from other payer sources when
providing protection services as described in Paragraph 1.1.16 of Exhibit B,
Scope of Services. The Department shall not reimburse for services under this
Agreement for protection services described in Paragraph 1.1.16'of Exhibit B,
Scope of Services.

7. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

8. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice is completed, dated and returned to
the Department in order to initiate payment.

9. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and

(2Pj
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emailed to dhhs.dbhinvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Tanja Godtfredsen
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

10. ' The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if
sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions
Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

11. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in 'Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

12. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

13. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

14. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

15. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes
'  limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting

encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

16. Audits

16.1. The Contractor.is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

16.2. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal
funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the
most recently completed fiscal year.

16.3. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.
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16.4. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by
Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to submit an
annual financial audit.

16.5. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200,
Subpart F of the Uriifornh Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

16.6. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal yean

16.7. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sectlons.5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foliowlrig Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency avvards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or .
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs: and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

ernployment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation "of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to eveiy grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials. iVj
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3,1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stale, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

Date Name/ )
Title:

Exhibit D-Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor initials
Workplace Requirements
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CERTIFiCATIQN REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
^Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the uridersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submlt Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

2c>2f

Date Name:

Title:

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification. In addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) Is submitted If at any lime the prospective primary participant learns
that Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. • .

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "Ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used In this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules Implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction lie entered into, It shall riot knowingly enter into any.lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will Include the
clause titled '^Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Inellgibillty and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactlons," provided by DHHS, without modification, in ail lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that It Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but Is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
In order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Oebarmenl, Suspension Vendor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters . / ^
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DMHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or comrhission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable tp certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or.

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal departrnent or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled -Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

P* t
Title:

Exhibil F - Cerlificalion Regarding Debarment. Suspension Vendor Initials
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CERTIFiCATiON OF COMPLiANCE WITH REQUiREMENTiS PERTAiNiNG TO
FEDERAL NONDiSCRIMiNATiON. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor idenlified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will corhply, and will require any subgrahtees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C, Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity. Plan;

- the Juvenile .Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited frorh discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
EmploymenVOpportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, In any program or activity:

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilihes in employment. State and local
government seivices, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 ij.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment,for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Stale administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, natiorial origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name:

? J»a..
?£E^ii>e>sr
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpalient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civii monetary penally of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C, known as, the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: OfPiCC

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Vendor Initials
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45'
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.50.1.

e. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Ooerations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HtTECH Act" rneans the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act.of 1996, Public Law
104-19,1 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

'• "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501 (g).

]. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Prjvacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. 'yt>\

3/2014 Exhibit I Conlractor Initials ^
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretarv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Securitv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart 0, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit

.  PHI in any rhanner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially, and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach .Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

0. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and.shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreernent including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity,

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situMions. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 Exhibit I Contraclor Initials
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a vyritten request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding tOvfonwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate, HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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•ar.

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entitv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitatlon(s) in Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI. ■

(5) • Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reaulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terrns In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Arhendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 • Exhibfll Contractor Initials
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the Invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f- Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
.  destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions {P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Depar^ptyt of Health andjji^man Services ^bldc.
Nanje^f the Contractor

— P'
j^re of^ut^rizedRepresentative Sigrji^t^ of Authorized Representative

•CteD-

N^e of Authorized R^^esentatjye Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

3/20M ExhitMt I

Health Insurance Portabilily Act
Business Asso^te Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDiNG ACCOUNTABILiTY-ANDTRANSPARENCY.

ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE - - ■

'  1 • • .

The Federal Funding Accountability arid Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal-to .or-greater than $25,000,and awarded on or after October 1,2010, to report oh
data related to executive corripehsatlbn arid associated first-tier subrgrarits of $25,000 or more. If the
iriitiai award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modlHcations result in a'to^l iaward equal,to or over
S25,000, the, award Is-subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the-award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Repbilirig.Subaward and-Executlve Compe.nsatiph''infpriTiation), the
Departrnerit of Health and.Human,Services (DHHSj must report the following information fo'r ariy
subaward orco'ntract award subject.to the FFATA reporting requirements; ' , v
1. -;Name of entity -
2. Aniourit of award .
3. Funding'agency
4.' NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of perforrhance
'9. . Unique identifie/pf the entity (DUNS . : , , . ,
10; Total compensatiph arid.narnes'ofthe'tqp five executives if:

10.1. More than'80% of annual gross revenue's are from the Federal governrnent, and those
.  revenues are greater thah;$25M,.anriually and ^

10.2. Compensation information is not'already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end.'of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award arriendrnent |s made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to.comply with_the.provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and .Transparency Act, Public Law ,109-282 and Public Lawi 10-252,
and 2 CFR Part.170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information),^and furlher'egrees^
to.!have the CbnVactof's representative,' as identified in Sections l.il'and 1.12;pf the General Provisions"
execule the following Certification: ■ , , , .
The beloNV named Cpnlfacloi;agrees fp provide" needed information as outlined above to the NH .
Department of Health and.Human Services and.io comply vyith all applicable provisidris'of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: dfpics ■

Exhibit J-.Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Conlractor,Initials.
Accouhialjiiity And Transparent^ Act (FFAJA) Compliance ''
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As the Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: ^ I

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange-Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.76m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above Is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/0HHS;UQ713

E)^lbil J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Inliials.
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

pHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning iri this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
.  unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring, to

situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164:402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" of "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on" behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation: This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge. Instruction, or
consent. Incident include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Lasl update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials '
DHHS Infofmaiion
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification ordestnjction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. ''Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or-transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

VS. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials ' ■
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If pHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract'may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this

.  Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet,

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If Epd User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Googie Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may riot transmit Confidential Data via an open

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor inliiais
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access of transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be

.  installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data rtiust be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such' time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and :any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States, This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cjoud computing, cloud sen/ice or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A;2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the" latest antl-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6.. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic rnedia containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and rnedia
sanitization, or othervyise physically destroying the media (for exampie.
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to, completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1,' The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, prdcessed. managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).

RW
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidehtial information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Departrhent system(s). Agreements '^^yill be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
GFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work vyith the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of.the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership merhber within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

EPJ
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Exhibit K
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the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
•the breach.

12. Contractor rnust. comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Securify Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable understate law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is' not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vehdor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who heed such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encn/pted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit,, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessmerit of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.

. This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other,applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify, the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as-well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as .
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer;

DHHSlnformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that OFFICE OF PUBLIC

GUARDIAN is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on July 14, 1983.1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is lit good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 30453

Certificate Number: 0004925073

<9

a&i

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be aHixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

(his 3rd day of June A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 , Raymond Bower ' hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Office of Public Guardian.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 2 .2020 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Roger Jobin - (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

.  j

Is duly authorized on behalf of Office of Public Guardian to enter Into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority, t further certify that It Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the per8on(s) listed above currently occupy the
posItlon(8) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation In cggtracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated;.
^ignay^ or tziecieoHjnicer . ̂

oc^c4
lectedOfflce

JTitA sufietl.

Rev. 03/24/20



yXCORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DOrrVYY)

06/10/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFRRMAT1VELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ie8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

THE ROWLEY AGENCY INC.

45 Constitution Avenue

P.O. Box 511 1

Concord NH 03302-0511

CONTACT Rachel Giunta

(603)224-8012

AMMSS: ffl'uhta®rowleyagency.com
INSURERtS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICa

INSURER A Liberty Mutual Ins Co (Peerless)

INSURED

The Office of the Public Guardian. LLC

2 Pillsbury Street

Suite 400

Concord NH 03301

INSURER B Eastern Alliance Insurance Group

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWW MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TRsn
TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER UMITS

X

imirsi
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

GENt AGGREGATE UMITAPPUES PER;

PRO
JECTX POUCY

.^^IC UiRRJ I Ar rucQ r

□ □LOC

OTHER;

BZS(21)59482402 02/05/2020 02/05/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTES
PREMISES fEa oceufTtow)

MED EXP (Any OfW pfOfi)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PROOUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

Hired/non-owned

1.000.000

1.000.000

15.000

1.000.000

2.000,000

2.000.000

$ 1.000.000

AUTOMOBILE UABtUTY

ANYAUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(El •cckMntI

BODILY INJURY (Pir pinon)

OVWEO
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Pw ledcMnt)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Pif acddBfill

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAJMS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE 1.000,000

USO(21)59482402 02/05/2020 02/05/2021 AGGREGATE 1.000,000

OED XI RETENTION S 10.000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS- UABnJTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER^CECUnvE
OFFICERAIEMBER EXCLUDED? -
(MifKlltOfy in NK)

X ŜTATUTE
OTH
ER

m 01-0000124869 06/30/2010 08/30/2020 E.L EACH ACCIDENT 500,000

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 500,000
11 ytf, ditcrtbi undw
DESSCRIPTON OF OPERATIONS bMow E.L DISEASE - POUCY UMIT 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramartci Sctwduli, may ba attachad K mofa apaca la raquirad)

State of NH Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301-3857
t  ■ - '

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPtRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 26 (2016/03)

01988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



OPG Mission Statement

The OPG Articles of Agreement and By-Laws articulate the following objectives and mission:

This corporation is created for the following reasons:

A. The provision of guardianship, co-guardlanshlp and conservatorship services for individuals
found to be legally Incapacitated pursuant to N.H. RSA 464-A and other applicable statutes.

B. To be designated as the Public Guardianship and Protection Program pursuant to N.H. RSA
547-B.

C. The provision of protective services, other than guardianship services that are consistent
with the intent of N.H. RSA 464-A. Such protective services may include, but not be limited

to, power of attorney, client representative, or services as a representative or protective
payee.

D. The provision of guardianship and other fiduciary services to minors.

E. The provision of private fiduciary services.

The mission statement expresses OPG's already well established philosophy as follows:

"It is the goal of this corporation to protect the legal and human rights and civil liberties of atl individuals
It serves by exercising the highest ethical standards In decision making on behalf of others and by
ensuring that the Individual dignity of Its clients is respected."
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:VACH0N CLUKAY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACC0VNTANT5
C-mt 608 Chestnut Street • Manchester, New Hampshire 03104Ost v-AJM.1 Y L (603) 622-7070 • Fax: (603) 622-1452 • www.vachoncluk8y.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR^S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Office of Public Guardian, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Office of Public Guardian, Inc.
(a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and
2018, and the related statements of activities, fanctional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fmancial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amerlcaj this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatemeht, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility
f

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financia] statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the fmancial statements are free fhsm material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fmancial statements, whe^er due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the frnancial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

Wo believe'that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the finaacial position of Office of Public Guardian, Inc. as of June 30,2019 and 2018, and the changes in
its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica.

Other Matters

We were not engaged to audit the statements of financial position of the agency funds of the
Office of Public Guardian, Inc. Those funds, which are more fiilly described in Note 8 to the financial
statements, were approximately $36,753,593 at June 30, 2019 and $39,346,008 at June 30, 2018, as
represented by management.

Manchester, New Hampshire
February 4,2020



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDUN, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30,2019 and 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash

A^unts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible
receivables of $30,000 in 2019 and $20,000 in 2018

Contracts receivable

Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT;
Condontinium Unit

Office fUmllure and equipment
Computer equipment

Less accumulated depreciation
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT. NET

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Restricted cash

Investments-restricted

Software, net of accumulated amortization of $143,527 in 2019 and $143,185 in 2018
TOTAL OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities:

Accrued payroll
Accrued vacation

Other

Current portion of long-tcrrh liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES;

Mortgage notes payable, less current portion of$l9,448 In 2019 and $20,347 in 2018
Notes payable, less current portion of SI.647 in 2019 and $1,428 in 2018
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABiLITlES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions:

Undeslgnated
With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions
Endowment ftinds

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See notes tofinancial statements
3

2m 2018

$  779,985 $ 5^,160

164,037 235,587
156,477 170,885
31.985 19.212

1.132.484 969.844

1,181,782 1,181,782

139,988 137,186
I6l;869 151.830

1.483,639 1,470,798

569.182 499.034

9I4;'457 971,764.

13,819 11,889
139,867 131,556

342

153.686 143,787

$ 2.200.627 $ 2.085,395

$  43,451 S 36.937

99.027 96,639
210,738 195,685

44,045 36,674
.  20,946 21.775

418J207 387,710

494,402 513,868
34.580 36.078

528.982 549.946

947.189 937.656

1,099,752 1,004,294

53,686 43,445
100.000 100.000

1.253.438 i:i47.739

$ .2.200.627 $ 2.085J93



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVmES
For the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS:

SUPPORT AND REVHENUE: ^

Fees and grants from governmental agencies
Other fees

Investment return, net

Other income

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

EXPENSES:

Program expense

Management and General Expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Investment return, net

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, July 1

NET ASSETS, June 30

2019 2m

$  1,987,490
2,272,142

1^20
3,021

E  1,810,228

2,178,761
173

1,614

4;E63.873 3,990.776

2,870,828 2,280,140

1,297,587 1,448,921

4.168.415 3,729,061

95,458 261.715

10,241 6,351

10,241 6,351

105,699 268,066

1,147,739 879,673

$  ,1.253.438 $  1,147,739

See notes tofinancial statemenSs
4



OFFICE OF PUBUC GUARDIAN, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For the Year Ended June 30,2019

Management Total

Program and Supporting Total

Services Qeneral Services Exoenses

SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries $ 2,029,134 S  832,428 S  832,428 S 2,861,562
Employee benefits 331,868 136,145 136,145 468,013
Payroll taxes 155.282 63.702 63.702 218,984

2,516,284 1.032.275 uosiais 3.548,559

OTHER EXPENSES:

Occupancy 36,549 14,994 14,994 51,543
Professional services 15,521 41,796 41,796 57,317
Cdroputer and software expenses 62,586 25,675 25,675 88,261
Staff development 17,256 7,079 7,079 24,335
OiEfice expenses 101,485 41,633 41,633 143,118
Travel 81,418 r

81,418
Insurance 19,446 19,446 19,446
Depreciation and amortization 70,490 70,490 70,490
Bad debts 27,820 27,820 27,820
Mortgage Interest 18,914 7,759 7,759 26,673
Other .20,815 8.6CZ0 8,620 29,435

Total $ 2.870.828 $  1,297.587 $  1,297.587 $ 4.168.415

See notes tofinancial statements
5



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30,2018

Supporting Services

Program
Management

end

Total

Supporting Total

Services General Services Exoenses

SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries S  1,628,698 $  954,514 $  954,514 $ 2,583,212

Employee benefits 252,632 148,053 148,053 400,685

Payroll taxes 125,235 73.393 73,393 198.628

2.006.565 1.175.960 1.175.960 3.182,525

OTHER EXPENSES;

Occupancy 33,662 19,727 19,727 53,389

Professional services 11,318 15,386 15.386 26,704

Computer and software expenses 46,960 27,521 27,521 74,481

Staff development 12,425 7,282 7,282 19,707

Office expenses 79,406 46,535 46,535 125,941

Travel 49,673 29,110 29,110 78,783 >

Insurance 13,879 13,879 13,879 'x

Depreciation and amortization 62,421 62,421 62,421
X

Bad debts 27,580 27,580 27,580 A

Mortgage Interest 20,684 12,122 12,122 32,806 ?•

Other 19,447 11.398. 11,398 30.845

Total $ 2^280.140 $  1,448,921 $  1.448.921 $ 3.729.061

See notes tofinancial statements
6



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDUN, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

•mi 2018

Cash Flows Prom Operating Activities:
Cash received from cliisats end third party payers $ 2,318,893 $ 2,066,163

Cash received from governmental agencies 2,001,898 1,754,548
Interest and dividends fr'om operations 3.150 1.701

Cash paid to employees (2,844,122) (2,521,554)

Cash paid to suppliers (1.197.189) (1,037,777)

Net Cash Provided Operating Activities 282,630 263.081

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (12,841) (159,572)

Purchase of investments (84,271) (88,203)

Realized gains on investments 5,894 2,131

Cash received fr̂ m interest and dividends 379 886

Proceeds frx)m sale of investments 67.757 86,187

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities (23,082) (158.571)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Payments on mortgages and notes (21,793) (20.777)

Net Cash Used for Financing Activities (21,793) (20,777)

Net Increase in Cash 237,755 83,733

Cash, Beginning of Year 556.049 472.316

Cash, End of Year. . $ 793.804 L 556.049

Reconciliation of Increase In Net Assets to Net

Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Increase in net assets. $  105,699 s 268,066

Adjustments to Reconcile Increase In Net Assets to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 70,148 61,835

Amortization 342 587

Realized gains on sales of investments (5,894) (2,131)

Unrealized gains on investments (2,038) (1.806)

Investment related income 9,862 (886)

Bad debts 27,820 27,580

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable . 43,730 (112,598)

Contracts receivable 14,408 (57,294)

Prepaid expenses (12,773) 4,198

Accounts payable 6,514 9,075

Accrued liabilities 24,812 66.455

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $  282,630 $ 263,081

Supplemental Data:
bterestpaid $  29,435 $ 32,806

Unreali^ gain on investments 2,038 1,806

' $  31,473 $ 34,612

See notes to financial statements
7



OFHCE OF PUBUC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Forthe Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Purpose

The Office of Public Guardian, Inc. (the "Entity") was incorporated as a non-profit organization on July
14, 1983. The Entity was established to provide guardianship, co-guardian^p and conservatorship
services for individuals found to be legally incapacitated pursuant to New Hampshire State law (RSA
464-A) and other applicable statutes. Protective services other than guardianship may include, but are not
limited to, power of attorney, client representative, or services as a representative or protective payee.

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Office of Public Guardian, Inc. conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to non-profit oiganizations, except as indicated
hereafter. The following is a summary ofsignificant accounting policies.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-Profit Entities included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The Entity is
required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of
net assets: unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted.

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject
to donor or certain grantor restrictions. These net assets may be used at the discretion of nrianagement and
the Entity's Board of Directors.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor or certain grantorrimposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Recognition of Donor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. The Entity reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets wifiiout
donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction end or purpose
restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the
nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to
net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released fi-om
restrictions.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepai^ using the accrual basis of accounting.

8



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

Revenues from program serviceis are recorded when earned. Other miscellaneous revenues are recorded
upon receipt.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and other cash accounts with a matiuity of 90 days Or
less. For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

2019 2011

As presented on the Statements of Financial Position ■
Cash and equivalents $ 779,985 $ 544,160
Cash, restricted 13.819 11.889

$  793.804 $ 556.049

Restricted Cash and Investments

Restricted cash and investments consist of cash and investments for the Graupner Endowment Fund, a
donor restricted contribution.

For the purposes of reporting cash flows, the Entity considers all highly liquid investments with an initial
maturity of 90 days or less as cash equivalents. The Entity's cash balances exceed amounts insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Cash per the bank statements at June 30, 2019 include
cash of apprpximately $264,813 which is not covered by depository insurance. The Entity does riot expect
to experience any losses from these accounts.

Investments

Investments, which consist of cash, equity securities and fixed income mutual funds managed by a bank
which, are carried at their approximate market value at June 30,2019 and 2018.

Pervasiveness of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
Significant estimates include depreciation expense and the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. The Entity's policy is to capitalize expenditures for mqjpr
improvements and to charge operations currently for expenditures which do.notextend;the lives, of related
assets. The provision for depreciation is determined by the straight-line mediod at rates intended to
depreciate or amortize the cost of related assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Years

Equipment 5-10
Furniture 5-10
Buildings 40



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, mC.
NOTES TO FmANCIAL STATEMiENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years EndedJune 30,2019 and !2018

Depreciation expense was $70,148 and $60,835 for the year ended June 30,2019 and 2018 respectively.

BadDebts

The Entity uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018, the Entity reserved $30,000 for 2019 and $20,000 for 2018 as an allowance for uncollectible
recolvables. Management estimated these allowances by evaluating the probability of collection on a per
account basis. "

Accrued Vacailon

Full time employees accrue Paid Time Off (PTO) during their first year of employment at a rate of 9.38
hours per completed month of service. After the first year of service employees are credited with 150 to
262.5 hours of PTO for that year on Januaiy 1st, based on each employee's years of service. Employees
may carry over 37.5 to 150 hours of unused PTO into each calendar year based on their years of service.
Any accrued, but unused PTO is payable to the employee upon separation from employment and has been
recorded as a liability at year end. .

{
Income Taxes {

[i

The Entity has received a determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service stating that it qualifies
for tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code for its exempt Unction
income. In addition, the Entity is not subject to state income taxes.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued an interpretation on Income Taxes which
ftindamentally changed the way that the Entity is required to treat its uncertain tax positions for financial
accounting purposes. It prescribes rules regarding how the Entity should recognize, measure and disclose i
in its financial statements tax positions that were taken or will betaken on the Entity's tax retum that, are •;
reflected in measuring current or deferred income tax assets and liabilities. Differences between tax t
positions taken in a tax return end amounts recognized in the financial statements will generally result in
an increase in a liability for Income taxes payable, or a reduction in a deferred tax asset, or an increase in
a deferred tax liability. The Entity does not have any unrecognized tax benefits and determined the impact
of this interpretation was not material to the financial statements.

Investments

The Board of Directors of the Entity has interpreted the State Prudent Management of Institutional Funds |
Act (SPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the 1
donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contraiy. Because of this I
interpretation, the Entity classifies the original value of the gift as permanently restricted net assets. The f
remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund is classified as temporarily restricted net assets I
until approved for expenditure when it is reclassified to unrestricted net assets. The Entity appropriates
amounts for expenditure in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by SPMIFA. In
accordance with SPMIFA, the Entity considers the following factors in making a determination to ^
appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) duration and preservation of the
endowment funds; (2) the purposes of the Entity and the endowment fund; (3) general economic
conditions; (4) effect of inflation and deflation; (5) the expected total retum from income and. the ,
appreciation of Investments; (6) other resources of the Entity; and (7) the investment policy of the Entity. •

10



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2Q19 and 2018

The Enti^ has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of income of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of those endowment assets over the long-term. Endowment assets inciiide
those assets of donor-restricted funds that the Entity must hold in perpetuity or for donor-specified
periods. Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a
manner that is intended to achieve an after-cost total real rate of return, including investment income as
well as capital appreciation, which exceeds the annual distribution with acceptable levels of risk. The
Entity expects its endowment assets, over time, to produce an average return of approximately 10% •
annually. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

To satisfy its long-term rate of return objectives, the Entity relies on a total return strate^ in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation and current yield. The Entity targets a
diversified asset allocation which includes equity and debt securities. This Is intended to result in a
consistent inflation-protection rate of return that has enough liquidity to make an annual distribution of
approximately $5,000 on average while growing the fund, if possible.

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor or SPMIFA requires the Entity to retain as a fund of perpetual
duration.

The following tabulation summarizes the relationship between canying values and market values of
investment assets for the years ending June 30,2019 and 2018:

For the year ended June 30,2019

Restricted net assets as of

July 1,2018
Investment return:

Investment income, net of fees
Net appreciation

Appropriation ofpurpose restrictions

Restricted net assets as of June 30,2019

For the year ended June 30,2018

Restricted net assets as of

July 1,2017
Investment return:

Investment income, net of fees
Net appreciation

Appropriation of purpose restrictions

Restricted net assets as of June 30,2018

Purpose
Restrictior^

Endowment

Eunds

43,445 - $ 100.000

2,308
7,933

Total

$  143,445

2,308
7,933

$  53.686 S  100,000 $  153,686 .

1

Purpose Endowment

'!

}

Restriction Funds Total

$  38,097 $  100,000 $  138,097

1,411 1,411

3,937 3,937

1

$  43.445 100.000 $ 143.445
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDUN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCUL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

Fair Value Measurements

The Entity has adopted the FASB Accounting Standards Codification standard, Fair Value
Measurements, which establishes a framework for measuring foir value. That framework provides a fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level I measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under the Ko/ue Afeasure/nenrj are described below.

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the Entity has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation include:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
, Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation
or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used
need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs at the closing
price reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Bond and Equity Mutual Funds-W&\uGd at the net asset value f'NAV") of shares held by the Entity at year
end.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Entity believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair
value measurement at, the reporting date.

The Entity's investments, comprised of mutual funds, were reported at fair value by Level 1 inputs in the
amounts of $153,686 and $131,565 for the years ended June 30,2019 and 2018, respectively.
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018 I

Investment Valuation and Income Recognition |
I'

The Enti^'s investments as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 are stated at fair value. Shares of the separate
investment accounts are valued at quoted market prices, which represent the net value of shares held by
the Entity at year-end.

Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest income is recorded on the
accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.

At June 30, 2019 and 2018. investments have a market value of $147,782 and $131,556, cost basis of
$147,722 and $127,631, realized gains of $5,894 and $2,131, unrealized gains and (losses) of $2,038 and j
$1,806, investment returns of $3,252 and $2,413, and endowment expenditures of $944 and $1,004 for [
investment advisojy services, respectively. . i

NOTE 2--ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The Entify's primaiy source of support are fees and grants received from the State of New Hampshire and
were $1,984,878 and $1,755,789 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The grant j;
agreements have been renewed for the next fiscal year. Revenue is recognized as earned under the terms I'
of the contract and is received on a cost reimbursement basis. Other support originates as charges for
private services, fees from regional non-profit agencies, interest, and other income. The contract has been ■;
renewed for the fiscal year ended June 30,2020.

r'
h

NOTE 3~L0NG-TERM DEBT i
i

*  , ' • i.
AtJune30,2019and2018,mortgegenotespayableconsistsofth6following: '

A

afii£ 2m I
$584,000 mortgage note payable with bank, secured by
property, payable in monthly installments of interest 1 ;
and principal reduction of $3,774, through October 2035, !•
with btcrest at 4.75% per ̂ um through.November 2025:
Subsequent interest will be 2.25% plus the Ten Year Federal
Home Loan Bank Index Rate. $ 513,850 $ 534,214 v

$41,000 note payable with bank, secured by all assets, payable ;
in monthly installments of interest and principal ofSl,589 j.

.  throughOctober2035,wlthinterestBt4.75%pcrannum |:
through November 2025. Subsequent interest will be 2.25% ji;
plus the Ten Year Home Loan Bank Index Rate. ..36.07.8 . 37.507 ' ; , !|

549,928 571,721
Less current portion 20.946 21,775, 5,

$  528.982 $ 549,946

13



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

Debt service requirements ere as follows:

Ysai Amount
2020 $ 20,946
2021 $ 23,849
2022 $ 25,007
2023 S 26,221
2024 , $ 27,494

NOTE 4-RETIREMENT PLAN

The Entity has a tax deferred annui^ plan under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Co.de for all full-
time employees. An employee becomes eligible to participate at the commencement of employment and
is vested when an initial contribution is made. Employer contributions are made on each participant's
behalf at 5% of gross wages each year. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Entity
contributed $85,448 and $61,585, respectively, to the plan.

NOTE S-FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to program or supporting
functions. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have been allocated among the program and supporting
services benefited, based primarily on percentage allocations calculated based on hours worked (time and
effort). The expenses that are allocated include salaries, payroll taxes, employee benefits, office supplies,
fundraising, operations, and insurance, which are all allocated on the basis of time and effort.

NOTE 6--CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

On August 18, 2016, FASH Issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities
(Topic 958) - Presentation of Financial Statements ofNot-for-profit Entities. The update address^ the
complexity and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information about liquidity
and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of information provided about
expenses and investment return. The Entity has implemented ASU 2016-14 and has adjusted the
presentation in these financial statements accordingly.

NOTE 7-RELASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the accompanying financial
statements to maintain consistency between periods presented. The reclassifications had no impact on
previously reported net assets.

NOTE 8-AGENCY FUNDS

The Entity maintains guardian accounts on behalf of the wards of the State of New Hampshire. These
funds amounted to approximately $36,753,593 and $39,346,008 as of June 30, 2019 and .2018
respectively. The assets and related obligations have not been reflected on the Statements of Financial
Position at June 30,2019 and 2018.
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

NOTE 9-CONTINGENT LIABELITY

The Organization and current and former employees and other parties are defendants in an action brought
forward by plaintiffs alleging wrongful death of an elderly individual in hospice care. The Compwy has
filed a substantive motion to dismiss all of the Plainti^s claims. The Company denies any and all
liability. A hearing has been scheduled on the Motion to Dismiss all of the Plaintiffs claims.

NOTE 10-LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILnY

The Entity regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. Cash reserves in excess of daily operational needs are invested iti certificates of
deposit to maximize investment return while maintaining safety and liquidity.

The following table reflects the Entity's financial assets as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, reduced by
amounts that are not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statement of financid
position date because of donor restrictions.

Financi^ assets available for general expenditure, reduced by donor or other restrictions limiting their
use, within Cne year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following:

20L9 2018

Cash $  793,804 $  556,049
Investments 139.867 131,556

Accounts receivable 164,037 235,587
Contracts receivable .. 156.477 170,885

Total Financial Assets 1,254,185 1,094,077
Less:

Net assets,with donor restrictions (153,686) (143,445)

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs

for General Expenditures Within One Year $ 1,100,499 $  950.632

NOTE 11--SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 4, 2020 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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EDUCATION:

UNDA e4AU0N, ESQUIRE

PrankUn Plerca Law Center. Concord, New Hampshire
Juils Doctor, 1982
Admls^on to New Hampshire Bar, 1982

TrinlttfCoWecie, Hartford, ConnecBcut
B At American Studies, 1977

PROFESSIONAL
EXPERIENCE: OP PUBUC GUARDIAN

Concord, New Hampshire

Executive Director, lS98-Present
Deputy Director, 1985-1998
Public Guardian, 1984-1985

o Responsible for directing a non-profit organization certified by
the NH Supreme Court to provide public guardianship
throughout the State of NH to qualified Indigent dtizens
leoeWlng services through the Department of Health and
Human Services and Departmait of Corrections

• Responsible tor overseeing the provldon of private
guardianship and other fldudary service to Individuals
statewide

• Pro\ride supen/lsfon, consultation and training to twenty^
staff members Including attorneys, medical profes^nals and
social workers

• Develop organizational policies end procedures
• Provide education, training and other consultative services on

a state, regional arxt n^nal Irasls



MEWEWfiLAMaWOH-PROPlT

HOUSTOfiCORPOIWnOM

Concord, New Hampshire
Staff Attorney, 1982-1984

MEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE
IWSTmmOWAL tflMLPROIECr

Concord, New Hampshire
UwOeik,. 1981-1982

StatBwlde program concerned with matters afiiectlng the
rights of Instftutlonatized and disabled persons In the areas
of mental health, developmental dl^mtles. Juvenile and
prison law.

fdcus on pursuing remedies which enabled these fndlvlduats
to live In the least restrictive, most integrated community
setting possible.

CERnFICAnONS: Center for Guardianship Certlflcation
• Certified Master Guardian
• Certified Proctor for C6Ce)(ams

MEMBERSHIPS: National Guardianship Assoc^on
• Ethics Committee; Rrst I^imnder
0 Nominating Committee

New Hampshire Bar Assodation
• Bder Law, Estate Planning and Probate Section

Probate Court Task Force on Professional Guardians

Long Term Care Ombudsman Advisory Committee

Incapacitated Adult Fatality Review Conunltbee

FOundatton for Healthy Communities
• Healthcare Dedslons Coalition



Expotence 2016'Cment OBJooofPubBoQuanHBtt
Staff Attomoy / National Certi6ed OttanOan

• Provtd9le0alooun8d88Rdoes8eiyto888t8ttnth8pravl8tond6usrdian^!l> ^
86)vtoo8 to IncapBeQated cQenls thmtflhout New Hempshlra

• Pi«vtd9Guard{v»hIp88fvteosto(R08p8oS8tededuIt8

20ff-Cursflf CuibBrsonLegalServlo09orNewHampahIfD^PLlJO
Owner / Mo Prootltleiior

• tegaleeivlces to tnduda probate Mgadon, elder law and estatoptonnln^. end
Nurebtg Home Abuse UQ^on

2005-2011 {^oo^thoNewHampshlroASomeyOonamt, OonoonSNH
Asstotant Attorney General

• Head oftoe BderAtone arid Rnanc{alBq)loMlonUn&
■ Breseouted casee of hondctoe. abuse, nagteol, end financial er^pioBseoft of

elderiy and InoapaeBstsd aduk In Gupaitor, Dtstrfot, and Robala Courts
thrm^uttoeStatecfNewHampsWre. NotabtoprosecuSonalnctode:

• Trained medteal profssslonals^ first respondeie, Judges, boutpereonndLemeigeitcy eaivtoe provkteie, ffltd adiffl piotedlon wort^ b Uantiyiy ̂ pte
and eyn^toms of elder abuse, rr^tect, ee^neglect and o^ttatbn, msndetoiy
reporfing, bwesfigaSon tectu^fuosand evtdanoe presenrafion.

a Drafted and filed StalsiS response to de!i3ndanl!ea;qj8al to Supteme Court
s ChalrmanofthatncapacfiatBdAduSFalalByRfiVlewOonimtttea.

2005-2000 OfifceoftteHH!bbcnM^gftCOun^yA^temoy, ManchesferWH
Asatatent County Attorney

• R^uesanted tbo Slate end KHoboraugh County (n JuvenBe, DIstrfct and
SupeitorCourts.

• PreseoufionofrntsdaffieanorandfelonytovQlcrimBS.
B PresontafionoffefonycasestatoegrandlioytOrlndlcbnenL

Co45lrector of Communities Agalnat Senior Exptoftafion (CASE) Partnership.

1902-2005 GoflSrtown Police Oapartmsnt GoflbtowoWH
PoQco Office/Prosecutor

B CeitlBed New KampsblrePoQce Officer
g Instructed end trtfned police cffters to toe areas of Juveifile law, criminal and

motor vahfele law enfcrcement and erQudfoaSon, eratti and seizure use of
force, oonstBuBonaKaw, and too taws of anest

• OrBfled,ievtswed,endexBcutsds8arohandaiTestw8rrante.
B iteinii^ and expertenoe to toe tovesfigafion of /fislonlee end eeitous

mbdsnaanora to tociude homlc^ aexud assaufi; child netdael end abuse,



ZOO^zm PtymornsmUnlmsSy, PlymouihtNH
A^jaattWaaO^

• InstmctorwKhlnttoDepaitmeittcfCitmlnaltJusSo^
Speotto (nstruotton b) oouses to tnctudo *Crtmtnsl AiQudlcaSort*, fho

CotsSuSon and tha Cifmtral JusSoo MkqP ctnd "Domaseo VZotenn and
JuvenOatfoadoer.

ZOO^-Cwrent New Hempahire PeBce Stanian/a end CowtNJ, Conocvd NH
OuostLocturoi' _
• Instniotor for bvsanrtoa trsMng of ponce oflloere attending *Bas{o f^oe

Piosacutoi'Coune.

« Lectured on topica to IttcbtdaThaRuIra of EvIdeRoer, "Case Prepaiation end
An^eld* and°Bder/toa ̂  Rnanctal BcpIottaBon tnvesttsaSorf.

■ PadBatorofmockDWltrialB.

EdueaUon
2004 MemchueetieSohootofLaw

" Juito Doctor D^rae

North Andovar,M/V

CeiUflcattpweand
Prafasslonal

Organlzatton

MembmeMpe

16S2 Ssfrttytneetmoosesa eoffistown.NH
" BaehetorofAlts Degree

> GornpIettonoffe<0ilreinBnls(brCiMa]Ju8SceIn16^
Completion of regittremanta for English In 1^8

2008>Cu)Tenf-Chsir of (ncspacttated Adutt Fatality Revtow Conunlttaa

20064?uff8nf-Co-Chalrperaon of Law Enforcement Sub-Committee of the Elder
Abuse Advfsory CounoQ

ZOOMawnt^ Panel Memberoftor^Tbmi Cera 8ei^M<sf Oommflfea

2004 - Member of ttia Massachusetts Bar Assodatton BA-158542
2004-Msniba-ofttrdNewHampshtraBarAs8OCfaeonBAp16430
2D05-Justloe ofthePeece-New Kanqjshira

■  isgg-CertSedNewHempshlrePoSoeOfflcer

Conttmitng Legal
EduoaBon

Ida] Advocsor I - NatldnQf Aflomsyb Assoc&ttctfc Tdal AArocecy n-
NaUonal Distriot Attome/e Aasocfefflaffi Fressouttng Cam of fflter Abuse -
NaSonalDtstitotAltBine/eAasochS0K Advanced Cress BcamlnaBore Nuts and
B^ of CifmlnsI Law: Access to PuNIo Records: New Hampshire Bar
AssodaBon Precttce) SdOs Couiee: CommuidSee Against Senior B^toOseon
(CASE) Partnersh^. NH Attorney Genaeta Child Abuse end Dcmasfio Vtolenco
Conferenoe,
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0 BoardofDlreotQia; HonorFi^NdwEngTfind

" Boatd of DtTBotoTB for Sunoook Youfit 8ocoer

"  ConvefosUonal French; PennissTonlst



Mary K. MIehaud

education Master of Sodal Woric 1990

State University of New York at Albany, Albany, NY
NH UCSW, 1936 (currently on Inactive status)

B.A.Psvchologv.1986

St. Anselm College, Manchester, NH

PROFESSIONAI Offfce of Public Guardian. 1998»presBnt

EXPERIENCE Concort,NH

Director of Guardianship Services. July 2Q17-Dresent

•  Provide oversight and management of guardian department, directly
supervising 18 professional guardians, Including 2 team leaders.

•  Serve as a member of the management team, participating In
organizational decisions.

•  Responsible for making caseload assignments to ensure manageable
caseload size and compo$l^|[.

•  In.conJunctlon with Executive Director and Associate Director, responsible
for hiring new guardians. Provide orientation and training for new
guardians and oversee ongoing training for all guardians.

•  Serve as primary guardian for several Individuals.

Guardian Supervisor. 2014-2017

•  Provide direct supervision, consultation and perforinance oversight for
professional guardian staff.

•  Provide orientation and training for new guardians.
•  Serve as primary guardian for several Individuals.

Staff Guardian. 1998-preseDt

•  Provide advocacy and Informed decision making for Individuals
deemed Incapacitated by the NH Probate Court due to Intellectual
disability, mental Illness, traumatic brain Injury and/or dementia.

•  Collaborate with families, medical providers, nursing homes, area
agendes, ommuhlty mental health centers, state psychiatric hospital,
and other Inpatlent, residential and outpatient providers to ensure
best possible outcomes for Individuals In least restrictive settings.



.QpnesTs Behavioral Health ffte Geneste»ThB CBurpenng Group). 1996-l99a
Laconia, NH -

case Management coordinator. 1997-iffgff

•  Provided administrative and dinlcal oversight of Community
Support Program dlnlcal case , management and Independent
living services for Individuals with serious and persistent mental
niness.

ainlcal Case Manager. 1^96-1997

•  Provided primary therapy and case management services for
adults with serious and persistent mental Illness.

•  Performed Emergency Services dlnlcal evaluations

gateway Center for Human Development. BmiKwIck. GA. 1595-1986

Interim Program Manager

• Managed psychosodal day treatment program for adults With
mental tliness during agency search for permanent manager.

Rensselaer County Department of Mental Health. a99{«995

Troy, NY

Intensive Case Manager. 1991-1995

•  Provided outreach and support for adults with serious and
persistent mental Illness at risk for hometessness,

Incarceration or recurring psychiatric hospltaltzatlon.

Mental Health Social Worker. 193Q-1991

•  Responsible for primary therapy and case management
ser\^ces for adults with mental Illness.



Andrea i* sisson, cpa

SUMMARY:

•  18year8ofeiqieriencew{tfaloc8]CPAfinnswoddDg\7iaiawideiaiigeofolieats
Inotudlng service businesses^ noni^fii oigantealions and multi-milUon dollar
manu&i^Qring companies.

• Co-ibunded and managed local payroll service bureau.
0 Profieietttinvaiious^pe8oftaxretnmpieparation,a]Iarea80faccoantiiig,botddce^ing

and payroll.
• Designed and implemented customized bookfce^ingsystansibr clients.
•  i&edf trained and supervised staff at various levels.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCEi

Office of PobUc Gnardiaii Concord»NewHampsblre
Business Manager lO/JOOT-Present
• RffpOPgfblg fbr fII affp'T*" nf Aa faclu^lqg dfllly

accoun^g wori^ prparation offinancid statements, prpaxation ofpayroll f<n 27
person sta£^ OKoation ofbudgets

• Responsible for supervision of dladmlnistiatlve staff and oversig^ ofail
administrative of dm entity

• Assist in die development ofoiganizational policies and procedures as a member
of die managnnent team

Peter C Brankman and Company, P.C Concord, New Hampshire
Senior Staff Accountant/Manager 10/2004-lO/MO?

0 Managed Individual tax portion ofpiaodce (400-500 returns); GontaUedwodc
Bow, supervisW staf^ prepared returns in a &8t-paced deadline driven
en^dronment

• Designed and mplemented ppexless individual tax processing systemu
• Perform coiipilatioiia» reviews and audits ofvariousBff profit and non-profit

client finandal statements.

•  and Implftnigwte*! nyghwiia fef flllenta.
• Trained and sipeivisedstaffoo an Qipes of engagements.



D'Agaese^ Robinson and Company/Stepben C Robinson and Company, /MdLerney
and Company (Samo firm vaxlons owners) Coneord, New Hampshire
StaffAcc^tant^Senlor StaffAcconntant/Manager 9/1989-6^04
• Assisted and advised clients with vartons accounttog and maaagement ftmcttens.
•  Installed sod set up acconntiiis software packages; train client personneL
• Managed all bookkeqdng clients.
• Designed and in^Iemented accounting and Internal control piooeduies.
• Managed wofic flow thnni£^ busy tax seasons
• Hired, trained and supervised staff

EDVCATlONt
• BS in Accounting, Bentl^ College May 1989



KERI P. HARRINGTON

EDUCATION

OUALIFICATIONS

WORK EXPERIENCE

April 2012-Present

April 2010-April 2012

June 2007-April 2010

Bachelor of Arts» Plymouth State UniversiQ'» Plymouth, NH
Major Anthropology/Sociology with an option in Sociology
Minors: Psychology and Business Administration

•  Experience managing and building a team
•  Experience with applying and managing grants
•  Ability to work effectively with people in varied situations
■  Problem-solving capabilities and ability to multi-task
•  Energetic, fl^ible, adaptable and enthusiastic
■  Effective team player

V. -

Financial Planning for Employment Program Director
Granite State Independent Living (GSIL), Concord, NH
Administrate Social Security Administration's Work Incentive Planning and
Assistance program for all of New Hampshire and 25 counties of New York and the
Financial Planning for Employment fee-for-service program and packages.
Supervised Coordinators and a subcontractor in New York. Provide work incentive
assistance and benefits analysis to beneficiaries receiving Social Security disability
benefits and state benefits. Provide information and referral to beneficiaries, families,
professionals, etc. Conduct outreach and presentations on work incentives.

Work Incentives Planning and Assistance (WIPA) Program-Manager
Granite State Independent Living (GSIL), Concord, NH
Provide work incentive assistance and benefits analysis to beneficiaries receiving
Social Security disability benefits and state benefits. Provide information and referral
to beneficiaries, families, professionals, etc. Conduct outreach and presentations on
woric incentives to beneficiaries, families, professionals, etc. Supervise the
Community Work Incentive Coordinators and with the administrative duties of the
WIPA program, i.e. completing reports, grants, and assist with any other reporting and
meetings necessaiy to the program and GSIL.

I

House Manager and Assistant Director
Northeast Arc (formerly NorthShore Arc), Burlington, MA
Assist individuals with cognitive and developmental disabilities who reside in a group
home. The individuals are physically disabled and medically fiagile. Administer
medications, help implement their ISP goals, and help with their eveiyday activities.
Advocate for the Individuals at health care provider appointments and help make sure
all equipment is in proper condition. Help with supervision with staff and talking with
parents.

Fcbruftfy 2006-JuRe 2007 Case Manager and Assistant Manager
Riverside Community Care, Reading and Wobum, MA
Assist individuals with cognitive and developmental disabilities who reside in a group
home. Administer medications, help implement their ISPs and behavior plans, bring
them to their health care provider appointments, assist with administrative paperwork,
and write case manager reports, assessments, and other paperwork as needed.



KERI P. HARRINGTON

September-December 2004 Direct Service Intern
Voices Against Violence, Plymouth, NH

Febniaiy 2003-December 2004 Building Manager and Ofllce Assistant

Hartman Union Bnilding, Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH

December 1990-March 2008 Answering Service Operator

Comnet Services, Winchester, MA

ACTrvrriES / special October 2010, full certification, Community Work Incentive Coordinator (CWIC)
RECOGNTnON Social Security Administration's Suitability Clearance (June 2010 and October 2013)

June'20D6 "Act of Kindness" award recipient
2004, Award Recipient, Top 20 Senior

Crisis Line Advocate for Voices Against Violence
2003, Award Recipient, Who's Who Among Colleges and Universities
Secretary, Junior and Senior Class

REFERENCES Available upon request



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Linda Malion Executive Director $125,914 46.39% $58,412

Tracy Culberson General Counsel $123,641 46.39% $57,357

Mary Michaud Director of Guardianship Svcs $93,992 46.39% $43,603

Andrea SIsson Director of Finance $91,928 46.39% $42,645

Keri Harrington Director of Fiduciary Services $80,000 46.39% $37,112



FOl<l\I :'Ill i\18ER l'-37 (Hrsion 1211 I 2019) 

Suhject:_ Guardi:rnship Services (SS-202 1-DHI 1-0 1-GUARD-02) 

Noll£c· Thi~ agrcc1m:n1 and all of it~ a11;1d1ment~ ~h:ill bc.:omc puhhc upl1n ~ubonh~l,>11 111 G'" crnor •md 
Excculi\c Council for appnm1l. r\m· infurma110111ha1 is priva te. conlidcnll;il nr propn,•1ar~ 11111-;1 
be clearly idcntilkd 111 thc U{!Cnl·y and JJ!rcc:d 111 in writing pl ior tu ~1g11111g the .;1111l1Jcl 

i\CREE\IENT 
The State of'\c,1 H.1111p~h110: and the C1111tr:11:ln< hereby n11Hually agree .1~ follows 

<a:'.'•:R:\l. PIW\'ISIO;-.;s 

I. IOEi'\TIFICATIO'.'i. ------------~-------
! I State Agency Name 

)'.cw I IJmpshi1 c DcpJrtmcnt of Health :mu I luman Sen ice~ 

1 ·icon1rnc1or Name 

Tn-Co1111ty Community Action Program. Inc. 

1.5 ( 'ontractor Phone 
N11ml>cr 

<(103) 750-)010 

I.(• J\ccounl N11mhcr 

05-95-92-9220 I 0-41 I 4-
102-500731 

1.9 Contr.u.:tini; Ofliccr li•r Stale Agc:m·y 

:-..J1han 1>. \\ 111t~. Director 

l II 

I 2 Staie Agtn,·y Address 

12') Pie.is.ml Street 
Concord. :-JI I 0.~30 1 -J!\)7 

I .<I <:ontrnclor Addrc~> 

30 Exchange Street 
Berlin NI l. 0.1570 

I.I ( 'omp't)lion D~tc --Tl!- Price I n 111ati1)1 

h111.:Jo.202~ _ lSl,198,%-l 

I I 0 S1:11c Agcn,·y Tclcplwnc N11111k~ 

1.12 N,1111c and l 11lc l'l ( 1\ntra.:1or Sign.l!t>r~ 
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The.: State of Ne~ 
I lampshire. actmg through the agency 1dcnt1tie<l in block I. I 
("State"), engages contractor identified in block I ~ 
( .. Contractor .. ) to perform, and the Contractm shall perform. the 
wrnk or sale of goods, or both, 1dcn11ticd and more particular!) 
described 111 the attached I·.XlllHIT B \\hich •~ incorporated 
herein by 1 eforence ("Sen ices") 

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES. 
3. 1 Not\\ ithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the 
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and 
I xccut1vc Council of the State of New Hampshire, ifapphcabh.:, 
this Agreement. and all obligations of the parties hereunder. shall 
become cffectnc on 1he d.1te the GoH·rno1 and Exccuti,·c 
Council approYe tlus Agreement as 111d1ca1ed m block I 17, 
unless no such approval•~ requucd, in \\hich case the Agreement 
shall become effcct1\e on the dt1tc the Agreemenc is signed b) 
the Stale Agency as shown in block I . I~ ("Fffective Date"). 
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the 
f ffcc11ve Date, all Service~ performed by the Contrnctm prior to 
the lffedi,·c Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the 
Contractor, and m the event that this Agreement docs not become 
effective. the State slwll have no liability lo the Contracto1, 
111duding without )mutation. any obhgatrnn to pay the 
Contractor for ;my cost\ incurred 01 SL·rvice~ performed 
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion D<1te 
specified 111 bllxk I 7. 

4. C'Oi\Drl IO~AL NATURE OF AGREEl\tENT. 
"lot\\ llhstandmg an; proV1s10n of this Agreement to the 
cont1Jry, all obligations of the State he1eunder. mdudmg. 
\\ ithoul hm1ta11on. the conlmuance of pa)mcnts hereunder, a1 e 
tontmgcnt upon the availah1lily and continued appropriation of 
funds affected by any state or federa l lcg1sla1ive or exccuti,·e 
action that reduces, eliminates 01 01hc1wiSL' modifies thl' 
appropriation 01 avai labilit) of fundmg for this Agreement and 
the Scope for Seniccs provided in f·XlllBIT R. m whole or in 
par! In no event shall the State be liable for ml) pa)111c111s 
hereunder 111 c>.ccss of ~uch a\'al lablc appropnatcd fund::- In the 
C\Cnt of a reduction 01 tcrm111at1on of appropnated funds, the 
State shall hnvc the right to \\ithhold pa)mcnt until suth funds 
lx:crnm: avai lable, 1f C\Cr, and shall have the right to reduce or 
tennmatc the Services under this Agreement immediately upon 
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or tern11nation. 
The State shall not be reqmrcd to transfer funds from any other 
acrount 01 source to the Account identified m block 1.6 in thl' 
c\l·nt fund~ m that Account arc reduced or unava1lable 

5. CO'liTRACT PRICE/PRICE Lll\llTATION/ 
PAYMENT. 
5. I The contract price. method of payment, and terms of pa)11H~nt 
arc identified and more pa11icularly described i11 EXlllBIT C 
which is incorporated herein by reference. 
5.2 1 he pa)rncnt by the State of the conll act p1 ice shall b.: thl' 
only and the complete 1e1111bur:.cmcnt to the Contract01 for all 
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor m the 
performance hereof. t1nd shall be the only an<l the complete 

compensation to the ( 'ontractor for the Sen ices. The State shall 
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price. 
5.3 The State rescnes the nght to ome1 from any amount:; 
othcnvisc payable to thl' Contractor under this Agreement thO$C 
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.11. RSA 80:7 
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of la\\. 
5.4 Notw1thstand111g an) prons1on in thi~ Agreement to the 
contrilry, and not\\1th~tanding unexpected c11cumstances, m no 
e'ent shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made 
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth 111 bloc!.. I R 

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS 
AND REGULATIO"llS/ EQUAL EMPLOYME!'ff 
OPPORTUNITY. 
6.1 In connection w11h the performance of the Services, the 
Contrn!:lor sh;ill comply \\Jth all apphcabk statutes. laws. 
regulations, and orders of federal. state, county or municipal 
authorities which impose an) obligation or duty upon the 
Contractor, including. hut not limited to, Cl\'ll rights and equal 
employment opportunit\ laws. In addition. 1fthis Agreement is 
funded in any pa11 by monies of the United States. the Contractor 
~hall comply with all federal executive orde1s, rnlc:., regulations 
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and gu1dcl111cs as the 
State or the United State~ issue to implement these regulations. 
The Contrnctor ~hall al'o comply with all applicable intellectual 
property laws 
6.2 Ounng the term of this Agreement. the Con tr acwr shall not 
discrimin:ite agJinsl employees or applicants fo1 employment 
because of1acc. color. 1ehg1011, creed. age. sex. handicap, i.cxual 
orientation . or nallnnal ong111 and will take t1fli1 mall\ e action to 
prevent such discriminallon. 
6.1 The Contractor agrees to permit the State or Umtcd States 
access to any of the Contractor\ book!-. rccmds and accounts fo1 
the purpose ofasccrtallling compliance with all 1 ulcs, n:gulations 
and 01 dcrs, and the con~nants. tcnns and condi1 ions of this 
Agre~mcnt 

7. PERSON:'\EL. 
7 1 The Contractor shall at Its ow11 expense pro,·1dc .11l personnel 
necessary to perfo1 m the Sen ices. The Con tr actor wt1rrants that 
all personnel engaged 111 the ~miccs shall be qualilicd to 
perform the Services. and sh<1ll be properly licensed and 
otherwise authori1cd to do so under all applicable laws. 
7.2 Unless othtrw1se authori1cd in writing. during the term of 
this Agreement, nnd lor a penod of six (6) months aOer the 
Completion Date in block I. 7. tht: Contractor shall not hire, and 
~hall not permit any subcontractor or other person. fim1 or 
corporatmn '' ith whom 11 i~ engaged in a combined efl'ort to 
perform thl' Scr\'lces to hue. any person who 1s a ~tatc employee 
or official. who 1s materially in\'Oh·eu 111 thi: procu1e111cnt, 
adrnini~trntion or pe1 formancc of this Agreement TlllS 
pro\1s1on shall survive tennmation of this Agreement. 
7."1 The (\mlracl111g Ollicer specified in block 1.9. or his or her 
successor. shall be the State's representative. In the event of any 
d1spu1e conceming the interpretation of this Agreement. the 
Contract mg Ofliccr ' s decision shall be final for the State 
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8 EVENT OF DEFAUL T/nEMEDIES. 
8. 1 An> one or more of the folio'' ing acts or onmsmns of the 
Contracto1 shall constitute an event or default hereundC'r ('"Event 
ofDefoult"). 
8 I . I failure to perform the Services satisfoctonly 01 on 
schedule 
8. 1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and 01 

8 1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of 
this Agreement. 
X.2 Upon the occurrence of an) Fvcnt of Default, the State may 
t;1kc any one, or more, or all, of the following a<:llons: 
8.2. 1 give the Contractor a v.Tittcn notice specifying the Event of 
Ot'fuult and 1 ~'quiring it to be 1 emed1ccl within, in the absence of 
a greater or lesse1 specifie111ion of time. 1hir1y ( 30) days fro111 the 
date of the notice, and 1fthe Event of Default 1s not 11mcly 1.:un:d. 
tennmate this Agreement, cffcct1'c two (2) days afler gl\ mg th<' 
Contractm notice of termination; 
8.2.2 g1w the Contractor a v.ncten not1cc spec1ty111g the I \·ent nl 
Default and Mlspendmg all pa>ment~ to be made unckr this 
Agreement and on.lermg that the portion of the conlla<:t pritc 
which would othernise accrue to the Contrnctor during the 
period from the date of such notice until such time a~ the S1<11c 
determines that the Contractor ha~ cw ed the bent of Default 
shall nc\'CI" be paid to the Contractor: 
X.2 1 give the Contractor ti \\Tittcn notice specifying the h:e111 of 
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may 
owe to the Contrnt'tor any damages the State sufTcrs by 1 eason of 
an) I n!nl of D.::foult; ctnd· or 
8 2 4 give the Contractor ti \\Tlttcn notice specifying the hcnt of 
Default. t1 l'at the Agreement a-; breached, tcnrnmllt' the 
Agrec::mcnt and pursue any of its remedies at law 01 in equity 0 1 

ho th 
8 3 No fai h111: by the Statt.: to enforce any provisions hneof af1e1 
any l 'nnt of Default ~hall be deemed a wal\ er of ib rights with 
1cgard to that bent of Default. or :my ~ubsequcnt Event of 
Default !\lo express failure to enforce any hent ofUefoult shall 
he deemed a wal\er of the right of the State to enfo1n· cadi and 
all of the pnl\1sions he1cofupon any lurther or other E\ent of 
Defoult on the part of the Conm1ctor 

9. 'l ERl\lJl\Al ION. 
9.1 Notwithstnnding p:uag1aph 8, the State ma) . 111 ih sole 
discretion, h.:rminate the Agreement for any reason, in '~holr 01 
in pm t, hy thi1 I> (30) days written notice to the Contractor that 
the St•lle is e>..e1 c1sing its option to terminate the Agt cement 
9 2 In the cn:nt of an early te1 m111ation of this Ag1 cement fo1 
any 1eason other than the complctlOn of the Services. the 
Contractor shall, at the S1<11e's d1serct10n, dehvl'1 tu the 
Contractmg Oflicer, not later than fitlcen ( 15) dnys atlcr thl' date 
of te1 minatwn. a report ("Termination Report") dc~rnbmg in 
detail :ill Ser\ices performed. and the contrncl price e:irned, to 

and includmg the date oftennina11on. The form, subject maller, 
rnn tcnt, and number of copies of the Tenninat1on Report shall 
he identical to tho:.e of any Final Report described 111 the attad1cd 
I XI llBll B In add11ion, at the State's discretion, the Contractor 
shall w1th111 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and 

submit 10 the State a Transition Plan for \Cf\ ice\ undt.i the 
Agreement. 

IO. D.l\TA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALIT\'/ 
PRESER\' A TJON. 
I 0.1 As used in th1~ Ag1wment, the word "data" ~hall mean all 
mformation and thmgs den~lnped or obtamcd durmg the 
performance of, or acquired oi de\'eloped by reason of, this 
Agreement, mcludmg, but not hm11ed to. all studies. reports, 
Ii les. formulae. surveys, maps. chans. sound recordings, 'ideo 
rccord111gs, ptctorrnl reproductions, drawmgs, nnalyses, grnphic 
1cprcsent,1tion s, computer programs, computer printouts, notes. 
letters, mcmonmdu. paper~. and documents, all whether 
finished or unfinished 
10.2 All data and :iny property v.hich has been recc1\'ed from 
the Sr ate or purchased \\1th funds pmvidcd fo1 that purpose 
under this Agreement. sh<i 11 be the p1 ope11y of the State, and 
shall be returned to the State upon demand ni upon IC"rmination 
of tins Agreement for any reason 
I 0 3 Confiden11ahty of data shall be governed by 'J II RSA 
chapter 91-A or other e\ isting hi\\ Disclosme of d,sta rcqmres 
prior written approvul ol the State 

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TOTllE STATE. In the 
performance of this Agreement the ContraC'tor is in ;ill respects 
rm independent contractrn , and 1s neither an agent nor an 
employee of the Slate. Nc1thc1 the Contractor nor any of !ls 
officers. employees, .igents or membc1 s sllJ II ha\ c authority to 
bind the State 01 rcccl\ can~ henrfits. workers· rnnipcnsution or 
other emoluments provided b) the Siate to Its employees. 

12. ASSIGN'\1 F:NT/DELEGA fJO"l/S lJHCOl\TRACTS. 
12 I The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwi~c traihfer any 
111tnest in rhis Agreement without the pr1111 written not1cc, which 
shall be pro"ided to the State at lcas1 fifteen (15) <la~ p1ior to 
the assil,'Tlment. ancl a written consent of the S1<1 te h1r pu1 puses 
of tl11s paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute 
ass1gnme111 .. Change of Control'' means (<i) merger. 
consolid,111011, or a trans.idwn or seriei; of related trunsactions in 
which a third party, together with its afliliates. bcrnmes the 
d11 cct or 111d1rcct ov.11er of fifty percent (50'"o) 01 more of the 
voring shares or similar equ1t) interests, or combined voting 
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all 
l1f the assets of the (\mtrnctur. 
12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the 
Contractor without prior w1 it ten notil'C ancl consent oft he State. 
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment 
agreements and shall not he bound b) any prm 1s1nns contained 
i11 a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which 11 1s not a 
party. 

13. l~DEMNI F'ICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by la\\.. 
lhC' Contructor shall mclemnify and hold hannlcss the State. its 
offaers and employees. from ,md agJiml an) and all cla i1m. 
liabilities and costs for an) person.ii 111Jllr)' or property damages, 
patent or cop)Tight infringement, or other l'laims ass.:rtC'd against 
the State. Its oflicers os employees, \\h1ch amc out l•f (or which 
mav be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of the 
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Contractor, or subconlrnclors, including but nol limited to the 
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State ~hall not 
be liable for any cost!' incurred by the Contractor arising under 
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein 
con lamed shall be deemed lo const11ute a \\'a1ver of the sovereign 
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserwd to the 
State Thi ~ co,·enant m paragraph 13 sha ll sunwe the 
tcr111ina1ion of tl11 ~ Agreement 

14. I NSURANCE. 
14. 1 The Contr:icto1 shall , ill its sole expense, obtam and 
contmuously ma111ta1n m force. and shall require any 
~ubcontractor or assignee tu obtain and mamtain in force. the 
followmg insurance: 
14 I I commercial genernl lwbility insuram:e against all claims 
of bodily mJury, death or properl) damage, m amounts of not 
k'ss than S 1,000,000 per occurrence and $2.000,000 aggreg<1te 
or cxcc~s: and 
14. 1.2 specia I cause of loss coverage form covering all property 
subject to ~ubparag.raph I 0.2 hcrcm, in nn amount not less lhan 
son~, of the whole replacement \alut· of the properly 
14 .2 The policies dcsc1lbcd in subparagraph 14.1 hcrcm shall be 
on policy forms mid cndt>rsemcnls approved for u~c in the Stalt' 
of Ne\\ Hampshire by the N.11. Dcpai tmcnt of ln~urancc. and 
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New I lampshire. 
14 .~ 'Ilic Conlraclor shall furnish to the ( ontracting Office1 
1dent1fied in block 1.9. or his or her successor. a cert1 ficatc(s) of 
insurance for ull 111surance required wider this Agreemcnl 
Contractor shall also furnish to the(' ontracting Oflicer idcn1ified 
rn block 1.9, or Im or her successor. ccrtificatc(s) of msurancc 
for all renC\\alCs) of in~urancc required under this \~rccmcnt no 
la1e1 than ten (I 0) days pnor to the cxpirnl1on date of each 
msnrance policy. The eertificatc(s) of 1nst11ancc and any 
rcne\\;lls thereof shall be nllached and arc mcorporated hca·m by 
n:fcrencc. 

15. WORKERS' COMPE:\'SATIO~. 
15. I By signing this agreement, the Contr.iclt11 agrees, ccr11fie, 
<llld \\an ants that the Contraclor ism compliance with or exempt 
from. the 1 equiremcnh of N 11 RSA chaptc1 281 -A ( .. ll'ork<'1-s 
( '0111pe11.1atio11 '). 

15 .2 To the extent 1hc Cont1act01 is subject 10 the requirements 
of N.H. RSA clrnpte1 281-A, Contracto1 ~hall maintain, and 
1equire any subcontractor or assignee tu secme and maintain, 
paymenl of \V orkcrs · Compensation in conncclion \\ ilh 
uctivit1cs which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this 
Ag1 cement 111( Contractor slrnll ftn nl\h the Contracting Ofticc1 
identified in block 1.9, or h i~ or her successor, proof of\\'orkers· 
Compensation 111 the manner described Ill f\ I I. RSA chapter 
28 1-A and any applicable rencwal(s) thereof. which shall be 
attached and arc inco1 poiatcd herein hy 1 cfercnce l he Stale 
shall not be rl·sponsiblc for paymcnl of any Workers· 
Co111pens:.1tion premiums or for any other claim 01 bcnclit t'rn 
Contractor. or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor. 
\\hirh might arise under apphcuble Stale of New llamp~hi1c 
Workers' Compcnsat10n laws m conncctmn with the 
performance of the Sen ice.; under this Agreement. 

1<1. NOTICE. An) notice b) a party herclo to the uthc1 party 
shall be deemed to ho\C been duly delivered or given at the time 
of mailing by certified mall, postage prepaid, 111 a United States 
Post Office addressed to the parlJcs at the addresses gl\en m 
blocks 1.2 :md I 4, herem 

17. Al\1END:'\1ENT. TlllS Agreement may be amended. waived 
or cl1,charged only b) an 111s11ument in \\Titmg signed by the 
parties hereto and only allcr approval of such amcndmenl, 
waiver or discharge by the Oovcrnor and Executive Council of 
the State of Ne'' I lampsh1rc unless no such approv;il is required 
u11dc1 the circum:.t.rnces pu1 suant to Stale luw, 1 ule 01 polic) 

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. Tim Ag1ccmcnt sha ll 
be governed. mterprctcd and construed in accordance w11h the 
laws of 1hc State of New I fomp~hirc. and is binclmg upon and 
111urcs to the benefit of the )Mrt1es and their respective successors 
and assigns. The wordmg used in this Agreemen1 1s 1he wording 
cllllscn by the p<1rt1cs tu express lheir 111u1ual mtcnl. and no rule 
of rnnstruction shall Ix· applied against or in favor of any party. 
Any actions arismg out of this Agrecmcnl shall be brought and 
ma1nlaincd 111 Ne\\ l lampsh1re Superior Cowl which shall have 
C\.clu~ivc jw isd1etion thereof 

19. CONFLICTING TERM S. In tht: event of a conflict 
hctwcen the terms of this P-J7 form (as modified 111 I X lllBlT 
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof. 1hc tcrl]ls of the 
I' n (as modified in I XI llBIT A) shall control 

20. THIRD PARTIES. The p;irtit·s hereto do not rntcnd to 
lwncfit any th11d pa1l1t\ and this Ag1ccmcn1 'hall not be 
con st rued to con for an) such benefit. 

21. HEADINGS. ·1 he hcad111i.:~ thrnughoul the Agrecmcnl arc 
for 1cfcrencc puriimc' only, and the \\Ord-; conlarned the1cin 
~hall in no way be held to explain, modify. amplit)' or a1<l 111 the 
inlcrpretatwn. const111c1 ion tir mc;ming of the pro\ 1s11111s or this 
Ag1 cement 

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Add111onal or modifying 
pro\ isions set fm th m the alt.iched EXI llBJT A arc mcorporatcd 
hc1 cin by rcferelll:e 

23. SE\'ERABILITY. Jn the event any of the prn\ 1s10J1S of this 
Agrccmcnt arc held by :1 comt of competent Jlll isd1ction lo be 
cont1 a1 y to an) s1,1tc m fcde1 a I tm . the 1 emainmg prm 1sions of 
this Agreement \\ill remain in full force and effect 

24. El\TIRE AGREEMENT. This Agrccmenl. which may be 
executed ill a numhcr of counterparts. each of which shull be 
clcemtd ::m original, const1tu1ts the cnllrt agreement and 
underslanding between 1hc pJrtics, and super sccles all prior 
agreements and undcrstandmgs with respect 10 the subject matter 
hc1 l'Of. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Guardianship Services 

EXHIBIT A 

REVISIONS TO ST AND ARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions 

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is 
amended as follows: 

3.1 . Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and 
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the 
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and 
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on July 1, 
2020 ("Effective Date"). 

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding 
subparagraph 3.3 as follows: 

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional year(s) 
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of 
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the 
Governor and Executive Council. 

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding 
subparagraph 12.3 as follows: 

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the 
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor 
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written 
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed 
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's 
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the 
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective 
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with 
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify 
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Guardianship Services 

EXHIBIT B 

Scope of Services 

1. Statement of Work 

1.1. Scope of Work Applicable to all Guardianship Services 

1.1.1. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall mean 
calendar days. 

1.1.2. For the purposes of this agreement, ward shall mean the individual for 
whom guardianship of the individual and/or estate is appointed by the 
Circuit Court - Probate Division 

1.1.3. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship and protection 
services to safeguard the liberty and well-being of individuals who, 
because of functional limitations, have suffered, are suffering, or are 
likely to suffer substantial harm due to an inability to: 

1.1.3.1 . Provide personal needs for food, clothing, shelter, health care 
or safety; or 

1 .1.3.2. Manage their property or financial affairs. 

1.1.4. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship and protection 
services to persons at risk of harm to themselves, their estates or both 
the person and estate, for whom the State of New Hampshire has a 
responsibility to safeguard pursuant to New Hampshire (NH) Revised 
Statutes Annotated (RSA) 135-C: 60, Guardianship; NH RSA 161-F: 
52, Guardianship; and RSA 171-A: 10, Residential Services; Legal 
Counsel and Guardianship. 

1.1.5. The Contractor shall provide public guardianship services to persons 
in Paragraph 1.1.4, statewide, in accordance with NH RSA 464-A, 
Guardians and Conservators and NH RSA 547-B, Public Guardianship 
and Protection Program, which include appointments as guardian, co­
guardian, conservator, or temporary guardian of the person and/or 
estate of the individual. 

1.1.6. The Contractor will provide protection services to individuals in 
Paragraph 1.1.4, statewide, that include actions necessary to carry out 
the duties as a duly designated representative or protective payee; 
client representative; attorney-in-fact; or other similar agent, as 
prescribed by applicable law, rule, or agreement. 

1.1. 7. The Contractor shall provide services to individuals only upon 
receiving prior approval from the Department of Health and Human 
Services, Office of Client and Legal Services. 

1.1 .8. The Contractor shall refer individuals to the Disability Rights Center -
NH, the New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other attorney when 
referrals from the Department's Office of Client and Legal Serv~r 

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Contractor Initials 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Guardianship·Services 

EXHIBIT B 

guardianship and protection services may be inappropriate, in order 
that an administrative appeal, or other appropriate legal action, can be 
taken on behalf of the individual. 

1.1.9. The Contractor shall direct any referrals for individuals made to the 
Contractor for guardianship and protection services to the 
Department's Office of Client and Legal Services when referrals are 
received from agencies that include, but are not limited to: 

1.1.9.1. The Glencliff Home for the Elderly; 

1.1.9.2. New Hampshire Hospital; 

1.1.9.3. Community agencies in the mental health system; 

1.1.9.4. Agencies in the developmental services system; and 

1.1.9.5. Agencies in the adult and elderly system. 

1.1.10. The Contractor shall not be reimbursed by the Department for services 
in the event the Contractor provides guardianship and protection 
services to individuals who are not screened and approved by the 
Department's Office of Client and Legal Services, unless the 
Contractor: 

1.1.10.1. Provides documentation satisfactory to the Department that 
circumstances not within the control of the Contractor 
occurred and the Contractor made reasonable efforts to 
decline the guardianship appointments. 

1.1.10.2. Includes documentation of efforts made to decline 
guardianship appointments with its monthly invoices. 

1.1.10.3. The State has responsibility to safeguard the person 
pursuant to RSA 135-C: 60, RSA 171-A: 10, II, and RSA 
161-F: 52. 

1.1.11. The Contractor shall provide guardianship and protection services to 
individuals, in accordance with the "Standards of Practice" and "A 
Model Code of Ethics for Guardians" developed by the National 
Guardianship Association. 

1.1.11.1. Notwithstanding the ethics and standards for guardians 
cited jn Paragraph 1.1.11, for monthly visits, the Contractor 
shall make quarterly face-to-face visits with the ward or 
more frequent visits as required in individual 
circumstances, in accordance with Contractor's accepted 
practice. 

1.1.11.2. The Contractor shall attempt to have a video conference, 
or telephone contact if technology for a video conference is 
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not available, with the ward in the instance the ward is out 
of the State of New Hampshire for an extended period of 
time and it would not be feasible for the Contractor to see 
the ward face to face on the basis outline in Subparagraph 
1.1.11.1 above. 

1.1.11.3. The Contractor may suspend face-to-face visits as required 
in Subparagraph 1.1.11.1 until an alternative plan can be 
developed that maintains personal safety of all parties if the 
ward exhibits unsafe behavior or is aggressive to the point 
of physical harm to the Contractor. 

1.1.12. In any action brought in Circuit Court-Probate Division to limit or 
otherwise reduce the scope of a guardianship over an individual 
served, the State shall appear with the Contractor where the State 
agrees that it is necessary to present the State's position on the action 
proposed. 

1.1.13. The Contractor agrees shall not provide individuals with direct 
services, which include: 

1.1.13.1. Psychotherapy; 

1.1.13.2. Case management; 

1.1.13.3. Transportation; 

1 .1.13.4. Financial aid; or 

1.1 .13.5. Other social services available through governmental or 
nonprofit agencies. 

1.1.14. The Contractor has responsibilities as an independent decision-maker 
acting in a fiduciary capacity with respect to individuals served and the 
decisions to be made on behalf of such individuals shall not be directed 
or influenced by the State. 

1.1.15. The Contractor may provide guardianship and protection services for 
individuals other than those who are referred for services pursuant to 
this Agreement, ensuring· 

1.1.15.1. Pursuant to RSA 54 7-B: 7, no funds provided under this 
Agreement are expended for those individuals. 

1.1.15.2. Sufficient records, which are subject to the Department's 
examination, are included and clearly document that the 
funds received under this Agreement are expended in 
accordance with this Agreement. 

1.1.16. The Contractor shall accept and investigate complaints from the 
Department regarding services performed , including the 
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circumstances pertaining to the complaint, and ensure a written 
response containing the results of the investigation is submitted to the 
Department no later than thirty (30) days from the date the complaint 
is received by the Contractor. 

1.1.17. The Contractor shall allow wards to participate in consumer 
satisfaction surveys unless the Contractor provides written reasons to 
the Department that state why a particular ward should not be allowed 
to participate. 

1.1.18. The Contractor agrees that if the performance of services involves the 
collection, transmission, storage, or disposition of data on behalf of the 
Department including substance use disorder (SUD) data created by 
a Part 2 provider, the Contractor shall maintain the data subject to the 
requirements stated in 45 CFR Part 2. 

1.2. Guardianship Services 

1.2.1. The listing and description of services to be provided to wards are not 
intended to restate existing rules and regulations currently in place, but 
rather to clarify the relationship of the Contractor with respect to its 
wards who need and receive services in the developmental services; 
mental health services; or elderly and adult service systems. 

1.2.2. The Contractor agrees that all of the responsibilities referenced in 
Subsection 1.2 are contingent upon the actual authority granted in 
each individual court order specifying the extent and scope of 
guardianship for each individual ward. 

1.2.3. The Contractor shall make decisions regarding the residential and day 
placement of each ward, utilizing: 

1.2.3.1. The standards of least restrictive environment; and 

1.2.3.2. What is in the best interests of the individual ward . 

1.2.4. The Contractor shall ensure all legally necessary steps are taken to 
enable the individual ward to receive comprehensive: 

1.2.4.1 . 

1.2.4.2. 

1.2.4.3. 

Evaluations; 

Treatment; and 

Services. 

1.2.5. The Contractor shall advocate for and request all necessary and 
appropriate services to which the ward is entitled, in accordance with: 

1.2.5.1. The ward's service and/or treatment plan; 

1.2.5.2. the ward's expressed preferences or best interests 
consistent with the Contractor's Code of Ethics and national 
Guardianship Association Standards of Practice; an'1 / 
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1.2.5.3. Established Department standards and State law. 

1.2.6. The Contractor shall be available to give or withhold consent to 
proposed care, when legally necessary, which includes, but is not 
limited to: 

1.2.6.1. 

1.2.6.2. 

1.2.6.3. 

1.2.6.4. 

1.2.6.5. 

1.2.6.6. 

1.2.6.7. 

Medical Care; 

Professional care; 

Legal counsel; 

Counseling; 

Behavioral health services; 

Changes in individual service and/or treatment plans; and 

Other clinically or legally significant treatment plans or 
services. 

1.2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the ward's civil rights are protected within 
the context of the decision-making on behalf of the ward, while 
refraining from unwarranted intrusion into the life of the ward. 

1.2.8. The Contractor shall be available to make all decisions, as required by 
RSA 464-A:26, and work collaboratively with the Department relative 
to any of the ward's debts owed to the State of New Hampshire, if the 
Contractor is guardian of the ward's estate. 

1.2.9. The Contractor shall remain current of the facts or circumstances that 
may impact the decisions to perform the functions specified in 
Subsection 1.2. 

1.2.10. The Contractor shall maintain appropriate contact with each ward to 
ensure services reflect the personal preferences, values, and desires 
of the ward to the fullest extent possible in order to make informed 
decisions on behalf of the ward. 

1.2.11. The Contractor shall obtain all available information regarding the ward 
or the ward 's situation in order to be fully aware of all risks and benefits 
of any proposed course of action, as well as any alternatives that may 
exist when making decisions on behalf of the ward. The Contractor, 
in addition to having required personal contact with the ward, may: 

1.2.11.1. Contact other important and significant people in the ward's 
life. 

1.2.11 .2. Interact with the ward's case manager. 

1.2.11.3. Interact others who share responsibility for meeting the 
needs of the ward. 

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. 
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1.3.1 . The Contractor shall accept all protection services cases referred by 
the Department's Office of Client and Legal Services. 

1.3.2. The Department shall make every attempt to obtain a Release of 
Information from the proposed cl ient for the Contractor except where 
prohibited from doing so by law. 

1.3.3. The Contractor shall be involved in the screening process for 
protection cases, as appropriate, or refer the individual to the Disability 
Rights Center - NH, New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other 
attorney in order that an administrative appeal or other appropriate 
legal action can be taken on behalf of the client. 

1.3.4. For persons referred to Contractor by the Department's Office of Client 
and Legal Services pursuant to NH RSA 136-C: 60 and NH RSA 171-
A: 10, 11, the Contractor shall serve the current 280 wards receiving 
guardianship services, as well as any new persons referred for 
services, in accordance with Paragraph 1.1.8., above, for a total of up 
to 280 cases during the contract period. 

1.3.5. The Contractor shall receive letters of approval for each new case 
assigned to the Contractor by the Department's Office of Client and 
Legal Services. 

1.4. Technical Assistance 

1.4 .1 . The Contractor may provide technical assistance to private guardians 
or training to staff that provide direct services to wards who are clients 
of the Department, which includes: 

1.4.1 .1. Area agency staff; and 

1.4.1 .2. Mental health services agency staff; 

1.5. Staffing 

1.5.1. The Contractor ensure staff providing guardianship services 
successfully complete a minimum of 20 hours of orientation training . 

1.5.2. The Contractor shall ensure staff providing guardianship services 
successfully complete a minimum of 10 hours of annual continuing 
education, annually. 

2. Exhibits Incorporated 

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in 
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPM) of 1996, and in accordance 
with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which has been 
executed by the parties. 

Contractor Initials-~---· Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. 

SS-2021-DBH-01-GUARD-02 Page 6 of 9 Date Vf 3 / Q10 



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Guardianship Services 

EXHIBIT B 

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in 
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security 
Requirements. 

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached 
hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 

3. Reporting Requirements 

3.1. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports of all written complaints filed 
against the Contractor, which includes: 

3.1.1. A copy of the written complaint; 

3.1.2. Steps taken to resolve the complaint; 

3.1.3. The date that the complaint was resolved; and 

3.1.4. Steps to be taken in the following quarter to mitigate similar complaints 
from being filed in the future. 

3.2. The Contractor shall provide an annual report, no later than August 1st that 
identifies names of guardians providing services with the number of continuing 
education hours obtained over the previous 12 month, ensuring supporting 
documentation is available for Department review upon request. 

4. Performance Measures 

4.1. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to 
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery 
and policy based on successful outcomes. 

5. Additional Terms 

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes 

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal 
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services 
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities 
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve 
compliance therewith. 

5.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS) 

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of 
the language assistance services they will provide to individuals with 
limited English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure 
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) 
days of the contract effective date. 

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership 

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other 
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance~ 
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services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The 
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a 
Contract with the State of New Hempshire, Department of Health and 
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New 
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or 
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human 
Services." 

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior 
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution 
or use. 

5.3.3 . The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all 
original materials produced, including, but not limited to: 

5.3.3.1. 

5.3.3.2. 

5.3.3.3. 

5.3.3.4. 

5.3.3.5. 

Brochures; 

Resource directories; 

Protocols or guidelines; 

Posters;, and 

Reports. 

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the 
contract without prior written approval from the Department. 

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations 

5.4.1 . In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor 
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, 
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public 
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty 
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the 
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license 
or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the 
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said 
license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and 
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the 
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees 
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all 
ru les, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the 
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in 
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and 
regulations. 

6. Records 

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to: 

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. Contractor Initials_&. 
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6.1.1. Books. records, documents and other electronic or physical data 
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the 
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received 
or collected by the Contractor. 

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting 
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all 
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the 
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, 
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions 
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, 
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other 
records requested or required by the Department. 

6.1.3. Statistical. enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of 
services, which records shall include all records of application and 
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each 
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all 
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such 
services. 

6.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services. 

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the 
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and 
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and 
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, 
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum 
number of units provided for in lhe Contract and upon payment of the price 
limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder 
(except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after 
the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the Contract) 
shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure 
Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as 
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct 
the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the 
Contractor. 
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Payment Terms 

1. This Agreement is funded by 100 % General Funds. 

2. For the purposes of this Agreement: 

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Contractor, in 
accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq. 

2.2. The Department has identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in 
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87. 

3. The State shall pay the Contractor a per diem, per case rate for services 
provided in fulfillment of this Agreement, as follows: 

3.1. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over the 
person services or guardianship over the estate services, as approved by 
the Office of Client and Legal Services for all Bureau of Mental Health 
Services or Bureau of Developmental Services clients shall be $6.81 per 
ward, per day, for up to 280 clients and as follows:. 

3.1.1. The Department will reimburse the Contractor at $6 .81 per ward 
per day when the Contractor provides guardianship over the 
person. 

3.2. The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of technical assistance 
shall be $60.00, not to exceed the amount of $2,000. 

3.3. The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of training shall be 
$60.00, not to exceed the amount of $1,500. 

4. The Contractor shall seek reimbursement from other payer sources when 
providing protection services as described in Paragraph 1.1.15 of Exhibit B, 
Scope of Services. The Department will not reimburse for services under this 
Agreement for protection services described in Paragraph 1.1.15 of Exhibit B, 
Scope of Services. 

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the 
fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and requests 
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. 

6. The Contractor shall ensure each invoice is completed, dated and returned to 
the Department in order to initiate payment. 

7. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and 
emailed to dhhs.dbhirivoiccsmhs@dhhs.nh.gov. or invoices may be mailed to: 

Tanja Godtfredsen 
Department of Health and Human Services 
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8. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt 
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if 
sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions 
Form Number P-37 of this Agreement. 

9. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the 
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 
Completion Date. 

10. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in 
compliance with funding requirements. 

11 . The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in 
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions 
of Exhibit B, Scope of Services. 

12. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that 
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event 
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable 
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been 
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this 
agreement. 

13. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes 
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting 
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the 
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without 
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and 
justified. 

14. Audits 

14.1 . The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department 
if any of the following conditions exist: 

14.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in 
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year. 

14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the 
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, 111-b, pertaining to charitable 
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more. 

14.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required 
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to 
submit an annual financial audit. 
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14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit 
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the 
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal 
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards. 

14.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an 
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year. 

14.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than 
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless 
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual 
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's 
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk. 

14.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the 
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the 
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions 
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the 
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been 
disallowed because of such an exception. 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS 

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: 

ALTERNATIVE I· FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES· CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION· CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE· CONTRACTORS 

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free 
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub­
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the 
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference. sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State 
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fisca l year in lieu of certificates for 
each grant during the federa l fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a 
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False 
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or 
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should 
send it to: 

Commissioner 
NH Department of Health and Human Services 
129 Pleasant Street, 
Concord, NH 03301-6505 

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by: 
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employe~s that the unlawful manufacture, distfibution, 

dispensing, possession or use of a controlied substance is prohibited in the grantee's 
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such 
prohibition; 

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about 
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and 
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations 

occurring in the workplace; 
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be 

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); 
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that. as a condition of 

employment under the grant, the employee will 
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and 
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug 

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such 
conviction; 

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under 
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. 
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice , including position title, to every grant 
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency 

CU10HHS1110713 
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the 
identification number(s) of each affected grant; 

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under 
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted 
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including 

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended; or 

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or 
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health , 
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency; 

1.7 Making a good faith effort lo continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through 
implementation of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2. 1 3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6. 

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in 
connection with the specific grant. 

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state. zip code) (list each location) 

Check a if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here. 

Vendor Name: I<,-~~ Ct.>v'\'\~l)rt\~ A<-~V\ ~fO~('(tW"l J IW(. · 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: 

US DEPARTMENT OF HEAL TH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS 
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS 

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): 
•remporary Assistance lo Needy Families under Title IV-A 
•child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D 
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX 
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX 
•community Services Block Grant under Title VI 
*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member 
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention 
sub-grantee or sub-contractor). 

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress , 
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub­
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form lo 
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.) 

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, 
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31 , U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required 
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less lhan $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for 
each such failure. 

Date ' 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit F 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION 
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MA TIERS 

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, 
Suspension, and Other Responsibi lity Matters. and further agrees to have the Contractor's 
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following 
Certification: 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract). the prospective primary participant is providing the 

certification set out below. 

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial 
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an 
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be 
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS) 
determination whether to enter into this transaction . However, failure of the prospective primary 
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in 
this transaction. 

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction . If it is later determined that the prospective 
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 

4 . The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to 
whom this proposal (contract) 1s submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns 
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances. 

5. The terms "covered transaction.'' "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered 
transaction," "participant." '·person," "primary covered transaction.'' "principal," "proposal," and 
"voluntari ly excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and 
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the 
attached definitions. 

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the 
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 
transaction with a person who is debarred. suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded 
from participation in this covered transaction. unless authorized by DHHS. 

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the 
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions.'' provided by DHHS, without modification. in all lower tier covered 
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a 
lower lier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded 
from the covered transaction. unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may 
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each 
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties). 

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records 
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and , ~ 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit F 

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent 
person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a 
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in 
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction 
for cause or default. 

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS 
11 . The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief. that it and its 

principals: 
11 .1 . are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 
11 .2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had 

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining. attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local) 
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of 
records. making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity 
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b) 
of th is certification; and 

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public 
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). 

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as 

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that ii and its principals: 
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. 
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such 

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). 

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will 
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and 
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions: without modification in all lower lier covered 
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 

(ofi/&b~ 
Date 

CU·tlHH$1110/ 13 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit G • CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO 

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS ANO 
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS 

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's 
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 
certification: 

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable 
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include: 

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits 
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in 
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin. and sex. The Act 
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan; 

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by 
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this 
statute are prohibited from discriminating , either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or 
benefits. on the basis of race. color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal 
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements ; 

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial 
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race , color, or national origin in any program or activity); 

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial 
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of 
services or benefits, in any program or activity; 

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits 
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local 
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation; 

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86). which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs; 

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include 
employment discrimination; 

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42 
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies 
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community 
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making 
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations; 

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based 
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization 
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for 
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against 
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts. 

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the 
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for 
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or 
debarment. 

6111.14 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit G 

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a find ing of 
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion. national origin, or sex 
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to 
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and 
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman. 

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's 
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 
certification: 

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions 
indicated above 

JR.} 31;;;cdo 

Vendor Name: \(i .. ~~ C.O't\\~V"I\~ ~\\t>Vl. 1'fo~~'M1 \'-I(.· 

Name~<i'iJ-\\t.'(ij Date 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit H 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE 

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or 
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education, 
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either 
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The 
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by 
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure 
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to 
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity. 

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's 
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following 
certification: 

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with 
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994. 

Vendor Name: 1'<\·tovl/\~ WM'WT\°'1\~ 1\-c,-T\Ow\ \:>~"'""' ll»t · 

NameAJ 
Tille: (Eu 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit I 

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT 
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to 
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and 
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business 
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that 
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered 
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services. 

(1) Definitions. 

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations. 

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code 
of Federal Regulations. 

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations. 

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set" 
in 45 CFR Section 164.501. 

e. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR 
Section 164.501. 

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations" 
in 45 CFR Section 164.501. 

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health 
Act, TitleXlll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 
2009. 

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto. 

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103 
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 
CFR Section 164.501(g). 

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States 
Department of Health and Human Services. 

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health 
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by 
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. 1 (J 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit I 

I. "Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR 
Section 164.103. 

m. "Secretary " shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or 
his/her designee. 

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected 
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto. 

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not 
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, 
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by 
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards 
Institute. 

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning 

(2) 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the 
HITECH 
Act. 

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information . 

Business Associate shall not use, disclose. maintain or transmit Protected Health 
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under 
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all 
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit 
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule. 

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI: 
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate; 
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or 
Ill. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered 

Entity. 

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a 
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure. (i) 
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and 
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was 
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business 
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification 
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained 
knowledge of such breach. 

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to 
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a 
request for disclosure on the basis that il is required by law, without first notifying 
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and 
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business 
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Exhibit I 

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all 
remedies. 

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to 
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security 
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule. the Business Associate 
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of 
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards. 

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate. 

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately 
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected 
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured 
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the 
protected health information of the Covered Entity. 

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes 
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be 
limited to: 

c. 

d . 

e. 

317014 

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the 
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification ; 

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the 
disclosure was made; 

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed 
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been 

mitigated. 

The Business Associate shall complete the nsk assessment within 48 hours of the 
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the 
Covered Entity. 

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and 
Breach Notification Rule. 

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books 
and records relating to the use and d1sc1osure of PHI received from, or created or 
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for 
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and 
Security Rule. 

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have 
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same 
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including 
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity 
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate 
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI 
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g. 

h. 

i. 

j . 

k. 

I. 
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Exhibit I 

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such 
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard 
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of 
protected health information. 

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, 
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all 
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure 
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine 
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement. 

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, 
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the 
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the 
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. 

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an 
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record 
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for 
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its 
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526. 

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to 
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an 
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 
164.528. 

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a 
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available 
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require lo fulfill its obligations 
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR 
Section 164.528. 

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI 
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) 
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the 
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the 
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business 
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate 
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify 
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable. 

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the 
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI 
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the 
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or 
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in 
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the 
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those 
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business • J 
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the 
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to 
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed. 

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity 

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its 
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's 
use or disclosure of PHI. 

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation 
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or 
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508. 

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or 
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, 
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of 
PHI. 

(5) Termination for Cause 

(6) 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

312014 

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this 
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered 
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate 
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may e ither immediately 
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the 
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity 
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the 
violation to the Secretary. 

Miscellaneous 

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, 
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended 
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to 
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as 
amended. 

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is 
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered 
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and 
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law. 

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights 
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity. 

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved 
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Ru le. J) 
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of th:s Exhibit I or the application thereof to any 
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect olher terms or 
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition: to this end the 
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable. 

t. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI return or 
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the 
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the 
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement . 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I. 

Date 

312014 

Signat of Authorized 
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Name of Authorized Representative 

Ch& p-OJ.J~Vi- Ofucp( 
Title of Authorized Representative 

&; f -s I i}.IJ ~.-o 
Date 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit J 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY 
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE 

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual 
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on 
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the 
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over 
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award. 
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the 
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any 
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements: 
1. Name of entity 
2. Amount of award 
3. Funding agency 
4. NAICS code for contracts I CFDA program number for grants 
5. Program source 
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action 
7. Location of the entity 
8. Principle place of performance 
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#) 
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if: 

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those 
revenues are greater than $25M annually and 

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC. 

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which 
the award or award amendment is made. 
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of 
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252, 
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees 
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.1 1 and 1.12 of the General Provisions 
execute the following Certification: 
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH 
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal 
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act. 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 
Exhibit J 

FORM A 

As the Contractor 1dent1f1ed in Section 1. 3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the 
below listed questions are true and accurate. 

1. The DUNS number for your entity is 

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization 
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, 
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements, and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual 
gross revenues from U.S federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or 
cooperative agreements? 

_k_No YES 

If the answer to #2 above 1s NO, stop here 

If the answer to #2 above 1s YES, please answer the following: 

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives 1n your 
business or organization through periodic reports flied under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a) 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986? 

___ NO ___ YES 

If the answer to #3 above 1s YES stop here 

If the answer to #3 above 1s NO please answer the following· 

4 The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or 
organization are as follows 

Name: __________ _ Amount ------
Name· __________ _ 

Amount ------

Name Amount _____ _ 

Name· __________ _ 
Amount. ------

Name·----------- Amount ------
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit K 

DHHS Information Security Requirements 

A Definitions 

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document: 

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure, 
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to 
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than 
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable 
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health 
Information, " Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations. 

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security 
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident 
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department 
of Commerce. 

3. 'Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information 
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial. public 
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance 
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and 
Personally Identifiable Information. 

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by 
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and 
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed 1n the course of performing contracted 
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by 
state or federal law or regulation This information includes, but is not limited to 
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pl), Personal Financial 
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), 
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information. 

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee, 
business associate, subcontractor. other downstream user, etc.) that receives 
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract. 

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the 
regulations promulgated thereunder. 

6. "Incident" moans an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy, 
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a 
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of 
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware, 
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or 
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss 
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit K 

DHHS Information Security Requirements 

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized 
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction. 

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is 
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information 
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and 
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open 
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted Pl, PFI, 
PHI or confidential DHHS data. 

8. "Personal Information" (or "Pl") means information which can be used to distinguish 
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal 
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc .. 
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked 
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden 
name, etc. 

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United 
States Department of Health and Human Services. 

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the 
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. § 
160.103. 

11 . "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic 
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments 
thereto. 

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is 
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information 
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is 
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by 
the American National Standards Institute. 

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF OHHS ANO THE CONTRACTOR 

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information. 

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information 
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor, 
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not 
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation 
of the Privacy and Security Rule. 

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit K 

DHHS Information Security Requirements 

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a 
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to 
consent or object to the disclosure . 

3 If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional 
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI 
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule. the Contractor must be bound by such 
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional 
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards. 

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End 
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract. 

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for 
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract. 

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives 
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this 
Contract. 

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DAT A 

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing 
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have 
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said 
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet. 

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks 
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS 
data. 

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if 
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of 
persons authorized to receive such information. 

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential 
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be 
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site. 

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file 
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit 
Confidential Data. 

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground 
mail within the continental U.S and when sent to a named individual. 

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit 
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected. 

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit K 

DHHS Information Security Requirements 

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when 
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network. 

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to 
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be 
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be 
transmitted or accessed. 

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If 
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will 
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of 
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will 
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 
hours). 

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all 
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. 

Ill. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS 

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this 
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any 
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise requ ired by law or permitted 
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must: 

A. Retention 

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in 
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United 
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of 
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup 
data and Disaster Recovery locations. 

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in 
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems 
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems. 

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End 
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information. 

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data 
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2 

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a 
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and 
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have 
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti­
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment. as a 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit K 

DHHS Information Security Requirements 

whole. must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection. 

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's 
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting 
infrastructure. 

B. Disposition 

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems {or its 
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for 
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will 
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the 
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing. emergency, and or disaster 
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of 
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program 
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media 
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, 
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines 
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. 
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at 
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department 
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to 
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, 
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly 
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction. 

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this 
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a 
secure method such as shredding. 

3. Unless otherwise specified, w ithin thirty (30) days of the termination of this 
Contract, Contractor agrees to complete ly destroy all electronic Confidential Data 
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping. 

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY 

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any 
derivative data or files, as follows: 

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department 
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery 
of contracted services. 

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department 
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from 
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the 
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.). 
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Exhibit K 

DHHS Information Security Requirements 

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to 
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information 
where applicable. 

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to 
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or 
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems. 

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End 
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information. 

6. If the Contractor will be sub contracting any core functions of the engagement 
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a 
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security 
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum 
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements . 

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable 
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies 
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of 
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be 
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to 
system access being authorized. 

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement 
(BAA) with the Department and 1s responsible for maintaining compliance with the 
agreement 

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System 
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and 
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may 
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed 
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by 
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the 
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes. 

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire 
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless 
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office 
leadership member within the Department. 

11 . Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall 
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to 
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. 
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from 
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit K 

DHHS Information Security Requirements 

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and 
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to 
the breach. 

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the 
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects 
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less 
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, 
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS 
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 
C.F .R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health 
information and as applicable under State law. 

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and 
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to 
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and 
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements 
established by the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. 
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doiVvendor/index.htm 
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and 
procurement information relating to vendors. 

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident 
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the 
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses 
provided 1n Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer 
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New 
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network. 

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this 
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to 
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract. 

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users: 

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, 
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS 
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure. 

b. safeguard this information at all times. 

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, Pl, or 
PFI are encrypted and password-protected. 

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being 
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to 
receive such information. 

VS. Last updalo 10,09/18 Exhibit K 
DHHS lnlormat1on 

Security Requirements 
Page 7 or9 

Coritractor Initials . ~ 
Date lo 01 C),D 



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services 

Exhibit K 

DHHS Information Security Requirements 

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law. 

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually 
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is 
physica lly and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons 
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, 
biometric identifiers, etc.). 

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any 
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases, 
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest , or when 
stored on portable media as required in section IV above. 

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and 
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based 
assessment of the circumstances involved. 

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password} must not be 
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure. 
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through 
a third party application. 

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS 
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this 
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, 
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data 
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract. 

V. LOSS REPORTING 

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any 
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in 
Section VI. 

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in 
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification 
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and 
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures, 
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will: 

1. Identify Incidents; 

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents ; 

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37; 

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents 
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and 
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DHHS Information Security Requirements 

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate 
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different 
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation 
measures. 

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported, as 
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. 

VI. PERSONS TO CONT ACT 

A. DHHS Privacy Officer: 

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov 

B. DHHS Security Officer: 

DH HS Information Se cu rityOffice@dh hs.nh .gov 
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State of New Hampshire 

Department of State 

CERTIFlCA TF. 

I._ William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of Ne\\' Hamp-;hirl', do hereoy certify that TRl-C'OUNl Y COMMlJi\ ITV 

ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI -COUNTY CAP) i$ a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corpnra1ion registered to transact bu~iness in 

New Hampshire on May I&, 1965. I further certify that all l~cs and (locumcnts required by the Secretary of State' s oflicc have 

t>ccn received and i' in good standing a~ far~' thi~ oflicc i ~ concerned. 

Business II>: 63020 

Ccrtific;ite Number: 000 .. 876884 

IN 'I l·Sl IMO;-.;Y WHEREOF. 

I hereto ~ct my h;uH.1 and eau-;c to he af11xcd 

the Sc.ii of the State of Nc1\ llampshirc, 

this l.~ t day of Ap1il A.D. 2020 

\\'illinrn M. Gardner 

Secrt.'tary of State 



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY 

I, Anne Barber , hereby certify that: 
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory) 

1. I am a duly elected Board-eRal# Vice Chair/ Elected Officer of_ Tri-County Community Action Program, INC._. 
(Corporat1on/LLC Name) 

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and 
held on __ June 25th , 2019_, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting. 

{Date) 

VOTED: That Jeanne Robillard, Chief Executive Officer, Randall Pilotte Chief Financial Officer (may list more than 
one person) 

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory) 

is duly authorized on behalf of _ Tri-County Community Action Program, INC._ to enter into contracts or 
agreements with the State 

(Nc.arne of Corporation/ LLC) 

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all 
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which 
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote. 

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the 
date of the contracUcontract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for 
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of 
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the 
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any 
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts wi e State of New Hampshire, 
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. 

Dated: ,3J 1J.Aa. 2.0 

Rev. 03/24/20 

Signature of Elected Officer 
Name: Anne Barber 
Title: Interim Vice Chair 
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DATC: (MMIOOll'YYYI 

~ 02/2512020 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY ANO CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER($), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the pohcy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rights t o the certificate holder In lieu of such endo rsement(s). 

PRODUCER CONTAC1 
NAME' Karen Shaughne~-sy 

FIAl;Cross Insurance ~.H,.QNJn E xtl (603) 669-3218 I r.ti Nol' (603) 645-4331 
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To the Board of Directors of 
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate 
Berlin, New Hampshire 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Leone 
McDonnell 
&RolJerts 

1'1<011'~~ ")\.\I. A.\.-;(~ l.\J 10.\ 

CERTIFIEI> 1'1 Ill.IC ACCOL'.7'.TA\'TS 

\\'01.FF.norw • :\OHTll CO\MY 
TIO\ El\ • CO:\CORD 

STRAlll\\I 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community 
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the 
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the related 
consolidated statements of cash flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, the 
related consolidated statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2019 and the related 
notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance w ith auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program, 
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and its consolidated cash flows for the years 
then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 
We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's 2018 
consolidated financial statements. and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those 
consolidated financial statements in our report dated October 19, 2018. In our opinion, the 
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2018, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements 
from which it has been derived. 

Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as 
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 21, 2019, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program, lnc.'s internal 
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County 
Community Action Program, lnc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program, lnc.'s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

~l/U~A.~ 
p~~ 

October 21, 2019 
North Conway, New Hampshire 
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IB!-COUNU CQMM.IJ.NllY ACTIO.N PROGR~M., IN(;. AND AFFILIATE 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

ASSETS 
2019 2018 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,400,750 $ 1,329,038 
Restricted cash 583,963 380,902 
Accounts receivable 1,274,083 1, 156,657 
Property held for sale 47,000 
Pledges receivable 231 ,161 212,207 
Inventories 85,886 87,569 
Prepaid expenses 34 037 25 640 

Total current assets 3,656,880 3,192,013 

PROPERU 
Property and equipment 12,086,152 12,812,689 
Less accumulated depreciation (5, 178,535) (5,203,324) 

Property, net 6,907,617 7,609,365 

OTHER ASSETS 
Restricted cash 418,936 325,863 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 10.!..983,433 $ 11,127.ill 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Demand note payable $ $ 516,022 
Current portion of long term debt 148,449 142,733 
Current portion of capital lease obligations 4,870 4,445 
Accounts payable 221,571 237,276 
Accrued compensated absences 204,079 203,121 
Accrued salaries 210,952 187,508 
Accrued expenses 89,524 131,888 
Refundable advances 197,157 191,069 
Other liabilities 598,195 387,168 

Total current liabilities 1,674,797 2,001,230 

LONG TERM DEBT 
Long term debt, net of current portion 5,227,835 5,373,937 
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion 3,355 8,226 

Total liabilities 6,905,987 7,383,393 

NET ASSETS 
Without donor restrictions 3,399,192 2,926,057 
With donor restrictions 678,254 817,791 

Total net assets 4,077,446 3,743,848 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS s 10,983,433 s 11,127,241 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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I.B.l:COUNIY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. !NC...AN.O. AE.Ell.IAI.I; 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 

Without Donor With Donor 2019 2018 
R!l!!tri1<1ions B!!strl!!tlo(!s Total To.tru 

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT 
Grant and contracts $ 14,074,008 $ 401,106 $ 14,475,114 $ 14,309,086 
Program funding 1,167,509 1,167,509 1,259,037 
Utility programs 1,287,103 1,287,103 1,079.361 
In-kind contributions 477,167 477, 167 351, 187 
Contributions 230.986 230.986 395,225 
rundraising 39,303 39,303 59,536 
Rental income 625,046 625,046 679, 112 
Interest income 643 643 348 
(loss) gain on disposal of property (32,89?) (32,892) 48,487 
Loss on write down of property held for sale (255,492) {255,492) 
Other revenue 196,364 196.364 61.938 

Total revenues and other support 17,809,745 401,106 18,?.10,851 18,263,317 

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS 540,643 (540.643) 

Total revenues, other support, and 
net assets released from restrictions 18,350.388 (139.537) 18,210,851 ~L263,317 

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
Program Services· 

Agency Fund 950,639 950.639 922,701 
Head Start 2.451,296 2,451,296 2,481,916 
Guardianship 767,241 767,241 760.009 
Transportation 916.089 916,089 879,729 
Volunteer 118.408 118,408 122,941 
Workforce Development 354,263 354,263 394,252 
Alcohol and Other Drugs 444,581 
CaIToll County Dental 747,474 747,474 642,637 
Support Center 391,650 391,650 276,172 
Homeless 714,066 714,066 577,783 
Cnergy and Community Development 7,788,560 7,788,560 7,480,943 
Elder 1,462,613 1.462,613 1,142,818 
Housing Services 172.852 172 852 __ 1_76 .. §..!1 

Total program services 16,835,151 16,835,151 16,302,993 

Supporting Activities 
General and administrative 1 032,207 1,032,207 1,102,448 
Fund raising 9,895 9,895 8,023 

Total supporting activities 1.042.102 1.042.102 1,110,471 

Total functional expenses 17,877,?53 __!l,_877 .253 17,413,464 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 473.135 (139,537) 333,598 849,853 

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR -~-~26,057 817,791 3,743,848 2.893,995 

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 3,399, 192 $ 678.254 $ 4,077.446 s 3,743,848 

Soc Notos to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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IRl·COUNJY COMMUNlIY.AClJ.Pli.f.aQ~.MM .. l~~ 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Change In net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to 
net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Loss (gain) on disposal of property 
Loss on write down of property held for sale 

(Increase) decrease in assets: 
Accounts receivable 
Pledges receivable 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses 
Restricted cash 

Increase (decrease) in liabihties: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued compensated absences 
Accrued salaries 
Accrued expenses 
Refundable advances 
Other liabilities 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from disposal of property 
Purchases of property and equipment 

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Net repayment on demand note payable 
Repayment of long-term debt 
Repayment of capital lease obligations 

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

NET INCREASE IN CASH ANO CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH ANO CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW 
INFORMATION: 

Cash paid during the year for. 

Interest 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING 
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Property donated 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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2019 

$ 333.598 

447,669 
32,892 

255,492 

(117.426) 
(18,954) 

1,683 
(8,397) 

(296, 134) 

(15,705) 
958 

23,444 
(42,364) 

6,088 
211,027 

813,871 

14,283 
(95,588) 

(81,305) 

(516.022) 
(140,386) 

(4,41§.) 

(660,854) 

71,712 

1,329,038 

! 1,400,750 

$ 152,,078 

$ 

2018 

$ 849,853 

463,483 
(48.487) 

170,337 
(6,403) 

(21,928) 
19,705 

235,922 

(281, 171) 
(39,424) 

(9,374) 
24,261 
(6,479) 

(258,143) 

1,092,152 

278,972 

- ~1._31?.) 

__ 137,637 

(90,412) 
(311,983) 

(4,056) 

(406.451) 

823,338 

505,700 

$ 1,329,038 

L 182.§2! 

$ 18,830 



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONA 

FOR THE YEAR ENQED JUNE 30. 20 

Agenc}'. Fund !:!w!J 
Direct Expenses 
Payro'I s 199.241 s 1,3366 
Payroil ta•es and benefits 49.259 3 
Assistance to d1cnts 22,359 
Consumable supplies 3.408 1~78 
Space costs and rentals 7.628 1 
Deprecialton oxpense 160.653 ~89 
In-k ind expMOed 
Consultants and contractors 20.400 
Ut1ilt1es 168.297 181 
Travel al'<l meetings 11 ,024 S42 
Other d1·ect prcgram costs 2.535 iz24 
Fiscal and adrn rustrative 16.817 731 
Building aod grounds ma:ntenance 93.9aa 594 
lnteresl expense 117,585 
Veh.cle expense 2,747 
Insurance 56,671 ~16 
Maintenance of equipment and renta: .%2 :331 
FtXed fee< 8 265 

Total Direct Expenses 950,639 2.4~152 

Indirec t Expenses 
lndirecl costs 96.348 2· 

Total Direct & lndlfect expenses s 1 ().16.987 s ? 61Js?_ 

Soo Notes to Consolidated Flnanc1 
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s 

General & 

Total ~dminl1!rat1ve Fundr~l2ln9 Total 

5.462 305 s 596,457 s s 6,058,762 

1,413250 163.274 1,576,524 

5,786 314 5,786,314 

846.305 11,436 857,741 

523.719 66,568 590.287 
447,669 3 157 450,826 
477. 167 477,167 

222.318 16.029 238,347 

378.636 5.708 384,344 
297.607 20.789 318,396 

157,696 9.225 9.895 176.816 

103.147 91740 197.887 
179 346 30 179.376 

152.965 953 153.918 
199.965 199.965 
8qo16 30,772 119.788 

83.909 12.647 96,556 
13.817 __ill 14.239 

16.835.151 1,032.207 9,8')5 17,877.253 

1.032.wz p .032.2Q7) 

17,867 .358 $ . s 9.695 s 17.877.253 



IB.l·C.0..V..till'. ... ~.Q.MMUtllD'. _i-CI!ON PROGRAM !lie.-~! 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL E> 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2QH 

~m:ncll Fund Head~,,,, 

Direct Expenses 
Payroll s 99.755 s 1 250 837 
Payroll taxes and ~nef.ts 23.319 339.0 • 
Assistance to clrents 74,171 

Consumable suppl res 1.723 240.852 
Space costs and rentals 21.013 16 4 ,4 . 
Oepreciatron expense 324 623 1.S;_ig 
In-kind expended 12.500 206.0· 
Consultants and contractors 15,6t5 28.9:. 
UM111es 135.551 32.562 
Tr.1vel and meetings 1.093 50.215 
Other direct pro1ram costs 44,933 9.76·1 
Fiscal and administrative 243 28.3t30 
Bu-lding and grounds ma•~tenance 62.822 62.51:;0 
Interest expense 127,777 3t • 
Vehicle expense 4,282 
ln~ur;ince 65.654 140'<2 
MJ1nlenancc ol equipment a'ld rental 52.1. 
Fixed fees 

Total Direct Expenses 1,015,074 2,481 .9'11 

Indirec t Expen ses 

lnd11ecl costs 86.950 248 0\ 

Copitolized Expenses 

Less cap1lalizat1on or assets (92.373) 

Total Direct & Indirect expenses s 1.009.651 s 2.1JO.oc11 

See No tes to Consolidated Flnanc la l ! 
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General & 

!2!ill Admlni~lr~ llve Fundral!i!lng I2l!! 

s 5.214.049 s 670.592 s s 5 884.641 

1,260.319 16~.414 1.42U33 

5,536.546 5.536,546 

949.850 11.219 961,069 

578.542 72.385 650.927 

463,483 463.483 

351.188 351.188 

315.842 15.662 331.504 

326,659 3.589 330,248 
278.787 9.470 288.257 

192.849 28.234 8 023 229.106 

94,549 106.359 200.908 

198.381 180 198.561 

183.401 1.241 1M,642 

164.961 t64.961 

154,315 5.085 159.400 

127.333 14.018 141.351 
4.312 4.312 

16.395.366 1,102.448 8,023 17.505,837 

1,102,448 ( 1, 102,4·18) 

(97.373) {92.371) 

s 17.405.441 s s 8023 ~ 1~ 



TRl-CO_!lNTY CQMMUNITY AC_IIOlL.eRQGRAM. INC. ANO AFEILIA...TE; 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018 

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
Organization and Principles of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tri-County 
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. 
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action 
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. 
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the 
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the 
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide 
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or 
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing 
North, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) was incorporated under the 
laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition, construction and operation 
of community-based housing for the elderly. 

Nature of activities 
The Organization's programs consist of the following: 

Agency 
Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management 
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs. 
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and 
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services, IT support, 
management support, financial support and central policy development. 

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County 
Community Action Program, Inc. , Board of Directors and its programs, 
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to 
funding sources and vendors. 

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding 
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as 
management of the Organization's real estate property. 

Head Start 
Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and 
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a 
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as 
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and 
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings, 
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and 
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing 
stability, continued education, and financial stability. 
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Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's 
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify 
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and 
development. 

Tri County Community Action Head Start serves 217 children in Carroll, 
Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-based classrooms 
and 1 home-based option. 

Guardianship 
The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian 
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents 
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury, 
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical 
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend 
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves 414 
individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship, representative 
payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management services and 
private probate accounting services. 

Transportation 
The Organization's transit program provides various transportation 
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance 
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and 
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that 
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 17 
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly 
and disabled, as well as to the general public. 

Volunteer 
The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains 
a minimum group of 394 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 287 
actively served during the last reporting period . These volunteers share 
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and 
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer 
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate 
over 46, 764 hours yearly. 

Workforce Development 
The Organization is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they 
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to 
gain the skills required for better jobs. 

9 



The Organization is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State 
Plan for Workforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce 
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in 
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy famil ies (TANF) 
recipients with 20·30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment 
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place 
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites. 

Alcohol & Other Drugs (AOD) 
Services provided through the AOD program included assisting the 
alcoholic/addicted person on the road to recovery, through three phases: 
Crisis Intervention, Sobriety Maintenance, and Assessment and Referral to 
appropriate treatment facilities. 

The Residential Treatment Programs (Friendship House) provided 
chemically dependent individuals with the fundamental tools of recovery, 
including educational classes, group and individual counseling, work and 
recreational therapy, and attendance at in-house and community-based 
alcoholics anonymous and narcotics anonymous meetings. The AOD 
program also offered assistance with its impaired driver programs. 

Effective October 1, 2017, the Organization is no longer responsible for the 
Alcohol & Other Drugs (AOD) program. The grants for the program were 
transferred to North Country Health Consortium (NCHC), as they took over the 
program. The Friendship House was sold to Affordable Housing Education and 
Development (AHEAD). 

Carroll County Dental 
The Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers high quality oral health 
care to children with NH Medicaid coverage. The Organization also serves 
uninsured and underinsured children and adults using a sliding fee scale 
that offers income-based discounts for care. The Center accepts most 
common dental insurances for those who have commercial dental 
insurance coverage. A school-based project of the Dental Center, School 
Smiles, offers oral health education, screening, treatment and referrals for 
treatment to over 1,000 children in 9 schools in the vicinity of the Center. 

Support Center 
The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service 
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and 
stalking in Northern Grafton County. Support Center services are 
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They include: crisis 
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy 
and accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community 
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students; 
information, referrals and assistance accessing other community 
resources. 
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Homeless 
Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project 
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless, 
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The 
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients. 

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to 
help preserve older housing stock. 

Energv Assistance and Outreach 
Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through 
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact 
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and 
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the 
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other 
programs available through other organizations in the community. 

Low-Income Weatherization 
The NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly, 
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs; 
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living 
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing 
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The 
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs. 

Elder 
The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 15 community 
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and 
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related 
programming. The Coos County Servicelink Aging & Disability Resource 
Center assists with person-centered counseling, Medicare counseling, 
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver 
supports. 

Housing Services 
Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is subject to a Project Rental Assistance 
Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their rental income is 
received from HUD. 

The Organization includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin, New 
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National 
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges 
and operating methods. 
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The Organization has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines 
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform 
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is 
considered to be a major program. 

Method of accounting 
The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program, 
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as 
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting 
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions, 
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or 
payment of cash. 

Basis of presentation 
The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the 
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to the following net asset classifications: 

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not subject 
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in 
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may 
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of 
directors. 

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipulations 
imposed by donors and granters. Some donor restrictions are temporary in 
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by 
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the 
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. 

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $678,254 and $817,791 
at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. See Note 13 

Contributions 
Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net 
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any 
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in 
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period 
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are 
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the 
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction 
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are 
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of 
activities as net assets released from restrictions. 
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Accounts Receivable 
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from 
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from 
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for 
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts 
receivable balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental 
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the 
direct write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write 
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts 
to be written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts 
receivable, and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as 
length of time outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on 
outstanding accounts receivable. 

Property and Depreciation 
Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all 
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the 
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. 

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is 
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by 
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or 
other similar allocation. 

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost 
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan. 
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are 
charged to expense as incurred. 

Estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Buildings and improvements 
Vehicles 
Furniture and equipment 

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy 

20 to 40 years 
5 to 8.5 years 
5 to 15 years 

Cornerstone Housing North, lnc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited 
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income 
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts 
received from the clients. 
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Refundable Advances 
Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized 
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are 
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of granter conditions being met 
aggregated $197,157 and $191,069 as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

Nonprofit tax status 
The Organization is a not-for-profit Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance 
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not 
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable 
contribution deduction for individual donors. The Organization files information 
returns in the United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of 
Organization Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS, 
generally for three years after it is filed. The Organization is no longer subject to 
examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2015. 

The Organization follows FASS ASC, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, 
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a 
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition 
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. 
The Organization does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, 
therefore, a liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not 
been recognized. 

Due to changes in the tax law in the 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, the Organization 
is subject to file an Unrelated Business Income Tax Return for unallowed expenses 
for the year ended June 30, 2019. These expenses fall under the qualified taxable 
fringe benefits. The total tax due for the year ended June 30, 2019 is approximately 
$8,900. 

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section 
501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has 
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the 
meaning of Section 509(a). 

Retirement plan 
The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of 
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to 
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee 
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits 
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the 
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments 
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, there were no discretionary 
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the 
Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements. 
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Donated services and goods 
Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or 
that require specialized ski lls and would typically need to be purchased if not 
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received. 

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If 
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded 
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations, 
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor 
restrictions. 

Donated property and equipment 
Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair 
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without 
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific 
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and 
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are 
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding 
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports 
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in 
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with 
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time. 

Promises to Give 
Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the 
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected 
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value. 
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one 
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their 
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk­
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received. 
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of 
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are 
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than 
one year after their due dates are written ·off unless the donors indicate that 
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor 
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. 

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, there were promises to give that were absent of 
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net 
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $231, 161 and $212,207, 
respectively. This amount was included in grants and contracts on the 
Consolidated Statement of Activities. 
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Use of estimates 
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabil ities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting 
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of 
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its 
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial 
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts 
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those 
instruments. 

Functional allocation of expenses 
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been 
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain 
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities 
benefited. 

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various 
programs and supporting services based on actual or estimated time 
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet. 

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon 
the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program 
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above. 

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a 
percentage of total salaries. 

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses 
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental 
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is al located to each 
program based upon a percentage of salaries. 

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific 
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the 
statements of functional expenses. 

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by 
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program 
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include 
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are 
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses. 
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Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle 
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square 
footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated 
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets. 

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and 
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses. 
The expenses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability 
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which 
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program. 

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe 
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018, received 
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12.50%. Per the 
agreement with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the 
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30, 2018 was 11.45%. The actual 
rate for the year ended June 30, 2019 was approximately 10.44%, which is 
allowable because it is less than the provisional rate. 

Advertising policy 
The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it 
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total 
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $11,698 and 
$18,616, respectively. 

Debt Issuance Costs 
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the 
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03, 
"Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs." The ASU is limited to 
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and 
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU. 
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the 
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2019 and 2018. 

New Accounting Pronouncement 
On August 18, 2016, FASS issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) 
- Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update 
addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset classification, 
deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack 
of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and investment 
return. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these statements 
accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods presented. 
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NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY 
The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2019 
and 2018: 

2019 2018 
Financial assets at year-end: 

Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated s 1,400,750 $ 1,329,038 
Accounts receivable 1,274,083 1,156,657 
Pledges receivable 231,161 212,207 

Total financial assets 2,905,994 2,697,902 

Less amounts not available to be 
used within one year: 
Net assets with donor restrictions 678,254 817,791 
Less net assets with time restrictions to be 

met in less than a year (348,631) (540,643) 

Amounts not available within one year 329,623 277,148 

Financial assets available to meet general 
expenditures over the next twelve months L2.576.3ll ,$ 2A2QJ54 

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of 
operating expenses which approximates $2,786,000 and $2,729,000 respectively, 
at June 30, 2019 and 2018. 

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial 
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At 
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were 
deposited with multiple financial institutions. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the 
balances in interest and non-interest-bearing accounts were insured by the FDIC up 
to $250,000. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, there was approximately $1,750,000 and 
$1,200,000, of deposits held in excess of the FDIC limit, respectively. Management 
believes the Organization is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and 
cash equivalents and considers this a normal business risk. 

Cash Restrictions 
The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of 
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to maintain a 
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to 
make payments of debt service or as approved by the US Department of 
Agriculture. 
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Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must be replenished with 
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The 
balance as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $20,010 and $19,980, respectively. 
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended 
June 30, 2019 and 2018. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the 
Statements of Financial Position. 

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as 
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the 
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June 
30, 2019 and 2018 was $176,298 and $176,570, respectively, and the Organization 
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted 
cash on the Statements of Financial Position. 

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in 
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for 
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial 
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this 
restriction at June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $582, 116 and $378,605, respectively. 
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Financial 
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2019 and 2018 
was $582, 116 and $378,605, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash 
balance on the Statements of Financial Position. 

At June 30, 2019, the Organization had $45, 198 in restricted cash relating to the 
property that is held for sale at year end. Upon the sale of the property, it will be 
donated to another non-profit Organization. 

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for 
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $179,277 and $131,610, respectively. See Note 15. 

NOTE 4. INVENTORY 
In 2019 and 2018, inventory included weatherization materials which had been 
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical 
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out {FIFO) 
method. Inventory at June 30, 2019 and 2018, consists of weatherization materials 
totaling $85,886 and $87,569, respectively. 
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During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Organization adopted the provisions of 
the FASB Accounting Standard Update (ASU) 2015-11, Inventory, (Topic 330): 
Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory, which simplifies the subsequent 
measurement of inventory by requiring inventory to be measured at the lower of 
cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of 
inventory in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of 
completion, disposal and transportation. The Organization has evaluated ASU 
2015-11 and has determined that there is no material impact to the financial 
statements. 

NOTE 5. ACCRUED EARNED TIME 
For the years ending June 30, 2019 and 2018, employees of the Organization were 
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2019 and 
2018, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its 
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $204,079 and $203, 121, 
respectively. 

NOTE 6. PROPERTY 
Property consists of the following at June 30, 2019: 

Capitalized Accumulated Net 
Cost Depreciation Book Value 

Building $ 9,709,749 $ 3,469,618 $ 6,240,131 
Equipment 1,950,063 1,708,917 241,146 
Construction 

in progress 2,500 2,500 
Land 423,840 423,840 

$12_.iill6, 152 $ 5_,JJ§..5_35 liJmL617 

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2018: 

Capitalized Accumulated Net 
Cost Depreciation Book Value 

Building $10,003,944 $ 3,448,411 $ 6,555,533 
Equipment 2,384,905 1,754,913 629,992 
Land 423,840 423,840 

$_1~12,689 $_ 5_._fQ.3_,_324 $ 7,609,365 

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of 
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book 
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's 
property and equipment totals. 
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Depreciation expense for .the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 totaled 
$447,669 and $463,483, respectively. 

The Organization has property held for sale at June · 30, 2019 amounting to 
$47,000, which is classified as a current asset in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of financial position. The total loss on the write down to market value of 
this property was $255,492. 

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT 
The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 consisted of 
the following: 

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly 
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per 
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final 

2019 2018 

installment due January 2027. $ 124,867 $ 138,225 

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly 
installments of $3,033, including interest at 4.69% 
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two 
commercial properties. Final installment due April 
2021. 

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly 
installments of $459, including interest at 5% per 
annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit 
that was converted to a term loan during the year 
ended June 30, 2016. Final installment due April 
2021. 

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72 
monthly installments of $312, including interest at 
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's 
vehicle. Final installment due August 2021. 

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72 
monthly installments of $313, including interest at 
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's 
vehicle. Final installment due July 2021. 

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60 
monthly installments of $143, including interest at 
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's 
vehicle. Final installment due November 2020. 
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Note payable to a financing company requiring 72 
monthly installments of $248, including interest at 
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's 
vehicle. Final installment due February 2023. 9, 739 

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly 
installments of $2,512, including interest at 5.51 % 
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on 
commercial property. Final balloon payment is due in 
March 2023. 395,429 

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly 
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2. 75% 
plus the bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by 
67% with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by 
first commercial real estate mortgage on various 
properties and assignments of rents at various 
properties. Final installment due August 2040. 2,634,595 

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance 
due to the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development. This capital advance is not subject to 
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven 
after 40 years, or in August 2047. 1,617,600 

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable 
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority. 
The mortgage is not subject to interest or principal 
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years, 
final payment due in August 2047. 

Total long term debt before unamortized debt 
issuance costs 

Unamortized deferred financing costs 

Total long term debt 
Less current portion due within one year 
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250,000 

5,388,102 
(11 ,818) 

5,376,284 
(148,449) 

$. 5.227 ._8_35 

12,041 

403,244 

2,719,260 

1,617,600 

250,000 

5,529,375 
(12,705) 

5,516,670 
(142,733) 

$ 5,373~ 



The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30, 2019 were as follows: 

Years ending 
June 30 Amount 

2020 $ 148,449 
2021 437,624 
2022 123,156 
2023 485,481 
2024 118,295 

Thereafter 4,075,097 

$ 5.388...102 

As described at Note 3, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account 
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above. 

NOTE 8. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 
During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization leased a phone system and 
copier under the terms of capital leases, expiring in November 2020 and March 
2021. respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company leased an 
additional copier under the terms of a capital lease, expiring in May 2021. The 
assets and liabilities under the capital leases are recorded at the lower of the 
present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets. The 
assets are depreciated over their estimated lives. 

The obligations included in capital leases at June 30, 2019 and 2018, consisted of 
the following: 

Lease payable to a financing company with 
monthly installments of $208 for principal and 
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease is secured 
by the phone system and will mature in November 
2020. $ 

Lease payable to a financing company with 
monthly installments of $122 for principal and 
interest at 8.841 % per annum. The lease is 
secured by a copier and will mature in March 
2021. 
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Lease payable to a financing company with 
monthly installments of $122 for principal and 
interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease is 
secured by a copier and will mature in May 2021. 

Less current portion 

~ 

2,673 

8,225 
(4,870) 

3.35.5 

3,842 

12,671 
(4,445) 

~-- -8226 

The scheduled maturities of capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2019 were as 
follows: 

Years ending 
June 30 

2020 
2021 

NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE 

$ 

Amount 

4,870 
3,355 

_$ 8,225-

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial 
institution which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases 
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement. 
Borrowings under the line bear interest at 5.00% per annum, and totaled $316,000 
at June 30, 2018. There was no balance outstanding at June 30, 2019. The line is 
subject to renewal each January. 

The Organization was issued an unsecured revolving line of credit in 2014 with the 
New Hampshire Department of Administration Services. The Organization was not 
required to make payments of interest or principal prior to maturity. At June 30, 
2018, the outstanding debt totaled $200,022, which included accrued interest of 
$21,434. The unsecured revolving line of credit was paid off in full during the year 
ended June 30, 2019. 

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES 
The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space. 
Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various starting dates, 
lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the Organization has 
several facil ities which are leased on a month to month basis. For the years ended 
June 30, 2019 and 2018, the annual rent expense for leased facilities tota led 
$181,127 and $165,227, respectively. 
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having 
initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2019, are as follows: 

Years ending 
June 30 Amount 

2020 $ 147,778 
2021 65,003 
2022 3 301 

$ 21§.,.,082 

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS 
The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the 
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, transportation and elder 
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization. 
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar 
paid positions. 

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below 
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and elder programs. 
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental 
payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal. 

Many other individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities of 
the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these 
donated services since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonable 
determination. 

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK 
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. receives a majority of its support from 
federal and state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
approximately $13,951,828 (77%) and $13,773,803 (75%), respectively, of the 
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a 
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant 
effect on the Organization's programs and activities. 

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of its support from the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June 
30, 2019 and 2018, approximately 69% of the Organizations total revenue was 
derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. In the 
absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of Cornerstone 
Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S. Department 
of Housing and Urban Development. 
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The majority of Cornerstone Housing North, lnc.'s assets are apartment projects, 
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In 
addition, the Organization operates in a regulated environment. The operation of 
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of 
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD. 
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an 
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes 
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, 
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change. 

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program 
services as of June 30, 2019 and 2018: 

2019 2018 

Temporary Municipal Funding $ 231, 161 $ 212,207 
10 Bricks Shelter Funds 142, 190 142,190 
FAP 117,470 136,614 
Restricted Buildings 87,541 190,049 
Support Center 25,939 
Weatherization 25,000 
Loans- HSGP 19,907 21,454 
FAP/EAP 11,290 23,249 
RSVP Program Funds 7,056 5,021 
Senior Meals 5,130 
Head Start 3,999 4,172 
Donations to Maple Fund 1,571 1,586 
Homeless Programs 27,680 
USDA 10,332 
Loans - HHARLF 6,967 
IDN Capacity Fund 32,194 
Community Needs Assessment 4076 

Total net assets with donor restrictions ,$=J~78.254 $ 817,791_ 

NOTE 14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Grant Compliance 
The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the 
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations 
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be 
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could 
be liable to the granter or face discontinuation of funding. 
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Environmental Contingencies 
On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure 
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2 
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which 
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills 
Company. 

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained 
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2, 
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the 
Department) noted that the remedial actions fo r the exterior soils and parts of the 
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction. 

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing 
Bui lding did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the 
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further 
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are 
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional 
action including containment and remediation. 

Loss Contingencies 
During the year ended June 30, 20 18, legal actions were brought against the 
Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as of June 30, 
2019, as well as the uncertainty of the Organizat ion's potential liability, no amount 
has been accrued by the Organization at this time. 

NOTE 15. REPLACEMENT RSERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS 
Under Cornerstone Housing North, lnc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD, the 
Organization is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the 
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD­
restricted deposits of $129,407 and $106,548 were held in a segregated account at 
June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not 
available for operating purposes. 

Cornerstone Housing North, lnc.'s use of the residual receipts account is contingent 
upon HUD's prior written approval. Residual receipts of $46,514 and $21,326 were 
held in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, 
respectively. 

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts 
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The policies 
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be 
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted 
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies 
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit. 
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In accordance with the policy noted above, subsequent to year end the 
Organization was required to remit funds to HUD totaling $31,412. In addition to the 
funds remitted, HUD approved the Organization to withdraw $11,852 from the 
residual receipts account for equipment. 

NOTE16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of 
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued. 
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional 
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, 
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. 
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about 
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose 
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 21, 
2019, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON 

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors of 
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. 
Berlin, New Hampshire 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Tri-County 
Community Action Program, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial 
position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash 
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated October 21, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Tri-County 
Community Action Program Inc. 's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine 
the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program lnc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program lnc.'s internal 
control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action Program lnc.'s 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of consolidated financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of 
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

October 21, 2019 
North Conway, New Hampshire 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Directors of 
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. 
Berlin, New Hampshire 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program lnc.'s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc. 's major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2019. Tri-County Community Action Program Inc. 's major federal programs are 
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Tri-County Community Action 
Program Inc. 's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; 
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Godo of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community Action Program lnc.'s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community 
Action Program Inc. 's compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each 
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
Management of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-County 
Community Action Program lnc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, lnc.'s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

October 21, 2019 
North Conway, New Hampshire 
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IBJ!.COUNTY COMM!.JNIIY ACTION PROGRAIYJ1_INC,! 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-County 
Community Action Program, Inc. 

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the 
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and other Matters Based on an Audit of nnancial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community 
Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit. 

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during the audit 
are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and 
on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance. 

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri County 
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs. 

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are 
reported in this Schedule. 

7. The programs tested as major programs included: 

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, LIHEAP - CFDA #93.568 

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services. Head Start - CFDA #93.600 

U.S. Dept. of Energy, Weatherizat1on Assistance for Low Income Individuals - CFDA 
#81.042 

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000. 

9 . Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee. 

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT 

None 

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT 

None 
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Jeanne L. Robillard 

('ORE STRENGTHS 
Prngrnm clcn:lopmcnt, management ancl aclm111istrat1on • Community colloiborntion~ 

Dcvclnpmtnl of policy, prntocol, ;incl sc:n·icL ckh\cry lO meet fundc1 st:incbrds 
Grant wnllng and m~n,1gc111 c:n t • Budget pl 1formancc and fm~nc1.tl 1 cportmg 

I nnnnti,·c soluliom & pmhkm soh·mg • Capacity hutlcl111g 
Profc~sional pt l,Ullatiom • Public \peaking 

Dcchcation • Jmaginauon • Dl termination • Fortitude 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

'l'a·i·('ounty Conunuuit,- L\.•·tima Pro~ram~. Int·. 
('hi••i E~t'«.>llfr••t• Oiiic•t•r 

B.-rlin. ~u 20 In - Nlrn.>111 1''T ,.,,,,,,"!I"'~"' 

1'ri•('ount1· ('01n11a11nit, .\.-Cion Pro~rnm'lf, Int·. 
( 'hi.-( OpC"raCin~ Offit·t'r 
llt•a·lin. NII 2016 • 2018 
Rc:spons1hlc f01 tht.: opera11011s of six agc:n() Divisions with 15 individu.11 programs that prn' 1dl· over 
60 consumc:r services :icross three counties of J\:orthcrn New I lampshirl'. Ls~rn 1 1 al <lutks 111cluck; 
supcn·1sion of Divi si1m Directors, on:r~cl. and moni tor program rcsouret.'S, rC\ cnuc:s, cxpcncl!lurc-. 
and budget pcrformanc<:; t:ictical oversight of progrnms to mn·t o r cxc<.>ccl :igl'ncr clcfinccl strntl'gJC 
goals, den·lop and implcmc.nt strategics to imprm c indl\·tdual program~ and m rral l agenry program 
and fiscal pcrform:incc; m·c·rs<:c and lead spcci.11 projects such as the 1\nnual Hqmr1, S1ra t('g1t PLui, 
( ommuniry Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior l\fanagum 111 ') c;im to dnclop 11l'\\' 
Sl'f\ ice: initiarives. Prmidc tactical guidance to Dn·1s1on Directors to trouhk shom 1ssu<.·s and pn1bkm~ 
in the datly operations of pmgrnms. 

Tri-(:ounC,r f'omnn1ni(t' At'tiou Prof.!rmu~. hu·. 
lti,·i~ion Diret·Cor: Tf'(',\I' Prt•\t•11Cio11 St•r\ iN'li> 
llt·rli11. NII 20 I;;. 2016 
R1:sponsibh: for four .1gcncy prograim undct th\.' umbrella of TCC \ P J>rn•cntion Sen ice~. m·crsee 
d1\ 1sion resources, revenue~. nnd cxpcnditmc.; and monttor budget pc.rformann:; gLncr:tl on:rs1ght of 
progr.1ms to meet or e:-.Cl«:d agcncy cldinc:d str.irq~JC goals; supl,r\'ise ptogr:im ~lm:ctors, \Hite grants 
to support progrnmo;, monitor 1 cs ult~, and pn:p;irl gr:int reports and financial sta11.:mcnts for fonckr~ 

and agency; dtYclnp funclrai,ing and 111.11 kct111g '\ti ,111.g1cs for programs; rc.:pre~ent progrnm through 
participation in srntc and local initiatin~s 1l'l.1tin to program/ divi sion goals and se rvice deli\ l' •r; 
c ollaboratc..· with stakcholck rs and clcctnl of tic 1.tls, mclt1ding presenting lcit1"httin. tes t imon~. 

'l'ri-f'ou11t;t· ('omnnmity Ac·tiou 111·0~1·0111~. Im·. 
P1·0~1·arn/Dh·ision Dirt•dor: Su1tport f'e•nfrr nt Durc·h llous•· 
l,ittlt•fon, l\'t•w Hnmp'lllail't' 2007· 20 I;; 
( h crscc daily operation and supc:n is1on of clorrn..:stK and sexual v1olcncl cns1s center ancl 1cs1dc.:nu:il 
slwltcr, write grants to support prng1a111~, 111oni101 re.. suit~, and prcp:irL grant rLports :ind financial 
statements for funclcr" an cl p:irL'l1t ngenq, o\ crs<.:L program n .. snurcc~, tT\'cnucs and c..xpcn<l1turLs, and 
monitor budget ptrformancc and progress tO\\ ;lid str.ltlg1c goals; crLatL and direct victim adYocaC) 
prngr.uns to cnsurt.: compliann \\ ith g1~1nt ckll\ t tables and applicable ~tatl' and frdc.: ral h\\; d<. \ t lop 
funclrnising an<l marketing ~1ratl'g1cs; p.1rucipa1t in !-tatc: :ind loc.11 collahor<Hions to cnh:incc. '1cum 
~erviccs; represent prugram 111 srnte :ind fccle1;1I \'ictim sc1-v1cc init1ativ< s, including prcscntation of 
kgislati,·e tcsumon); create and present trn111i11gs for mcd1c:il and legal professionals on kgal ~t:inclarcls 
and best practices for' tctim services. 



llookkt•t•pt•r: \Vomt'l1's Hurni Entr1·pr1·1wm·i11I ~t·twork 0\'llE~• 
llt.'thlt•lu•m, NII c•urrc·nt .. T c•1n1•lo,mc•nt 

JL Robillard * 2 

Responsible for grant fiscal tracking, reporting, funds release and account transfers, bi -weekly payro ll 
and 941 payments, accollnts parnblc and recci\·able, month end rc:concihario n'I for bank accounts, 
credit cards. perty cash, rernil and market sales; monthly POS/QB rcconcilianon for three retail 
locations, preparing month!) cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors. 

Tri•t:ount,· f'ommunit,· Al'tion Pro~rnms, Int•. 
Direc•t St•r\•ic-c•s/ Vol11ntt•c•r Coordinntor: S11p1u•rt <'c·ntc•r ut Durc·la lloust.' 
Litclt•fon, New llnmpsllirt· 19H7 to 2007 
Provide advocacy and direct scrvict:: ro victims of clomcsric and sexual violence; supervise court 
adv<>rncy pnigrnm~; recruit, train and super- ise ~ta ff, volunt<..crs, and intern'>; ckn:lop agency systems, 
pnlicies and protocols; create and prrscnt commumty outreach prescntat1onlo and campaigns; pn:scnt 
school -ha~c<l v iol ence prcvnition classes fnt grade~ J< - 12; prm·iclc on-call coverage o( crisis line 

DirN·tor: Hu,•erhill ,\rNl J1nc•11il1· Diu·r .... ion Pro~rnm 
\\lomls,·illc·. N1•w llnmpsl1ir1· 1999·2001 
Recrnit, train, and sup<'rvisc \ Oluntccr diversion committee<;; establish co111nHmi1r progrnmming for 
diverted youth; supporr iw coun<;c:ling of youth; maintain rnllaborative re lation.;hips between the court 
system, jm«.'nilc scf\·ice officcts, local police department'>, and dt\'crsion program; prcpart· and fik 
court report<; on cli\'<..rtcd youth; communit) outreach and education 

f'ounsf'lur /Titl1• I 'fe•aeh1•1·: ~m·tlu·rn l~mnil,· lustituf.-•. J.-Uerso11 Shl•lter 
J<'HerNon. Nl·w llnm1•shirc· I 994t· I 99U 
Provide: indt\•idual supportin• counseling to adjudtcatLd youth , focihratc peer support gmups, devc:lop 
and implement treatment plans and cas<.: managcmcnt sen ices to clients, supt:tTis<.: and tutor youth in 
cbssroom setting, supervise youth in daily It\ ing ski lb 

Echu·ation 
llS in llnman St•r\ie.·t•s, Sprin~iit•lcl ('ollc·~c· St·laool of llunuua St•rvic·t·ir.. Hoston, 1\1.\ 
Criminal Justice Concentratinn, Gradf!r1/nl with 4.0 ( ,p /1 

AS in Dru~ and All"ohol llc·laabilifotion ('oun~din~ «DAR(: l'ro~rmn• 
Southt•1·11 ('01n1e•t•tit·ut ('0111111111tit;'1' ('ollc·~t·, X1·w ll1n·t·11, {'T 

Addi~ional Skills. t•roit-ssio11al Leade1·sl1i1t a11d Civit· Ariiliatio11s 

• Chairm::in, Bethkhcm Bo.ml of Stlect1111.:n, Town 1>f !kt hie hem ·1 "·ice Eleet<.:d 2006-2010 

• Chairman, J\rts 1\lli:rncC' of Nortlit.:m !\<:w l l arnp~hire 2000-2003, Tmmmr 1996 1998 

• Cluirman, I Lm::rhill Arca F:unily \'1oknc<: Council 1998 2003 

• Ceirificd PRl :\IE FOR LIFF Jin paired Dmu J ntcrvcnuon Program l nrnuctor #1'111(i1 99 

• Rcgistc:rccl St:-:ual I braslomc·nr Prevcmion Tr11incr in th<.> Sr:ue of New I hmpshi rl' 

• Hoard l\kmhcr, \\ 'omrn's Rural Lnm.:prcnn11ial l"\ct,\Urk 2014; l!ld1rid11al ,\lr111/10 200N-2017 

• lkthlchu11 Planning Board ](J/(J 20/S 

• Bcthldu:rn Comcn-arion Comm1ss1nn 2006 ·· mm11/ 

• (;ranik'. United \\':1), l"\orrh Counrry Cabinet l\lember JO 11-2012 

• TCC\P: Commc:ndarion- Di"iwm Dll't<"tor .\wud, 201 I 

• Ikrhkhcm Citixcn's J\dvisory Commmct on Recyding 20()7.2()/() 

• I .iccnscd Foster Parent, Stare of NI l 2000-2006 

• Small Busintss Owner : .\urora I .nergies 2015- mnml 

• SptakcaS) Trio Jan \'ocalist/ Swu.:r .J amm Swing Rand Jau \'ocah~t 1997-mm11t 

• ;\km her, Unnc-d State~ Figme Skating t\s~ol i:1tion/Jnrl·rnational Skating l nstimtc r111w11 .ri11n 199 3 



RANDALL S. PILOTTE 

SUMMARY 

Accounting professional with over 29 years of expc1icncc, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer. 
16 years of experience managing accounting professionals. Key competencies include: 

Ftnaneial Statements 
Payroll 
Budgeting 

Accounts Payables 
Hank Reconciliations 
Cash Flow Management 

Inventory 
Accounts Receivables 
Audits 

EXPF.IUENCE 

Fixed Assets 
Sales/Use Tax 
Forecasting 

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC., Berlin, NI I 06/20 I 3-Prescnt 

CFO (2017 Present) 
Wot k closely with the CEO, Treasurer and Finance Co1111111ttec lo identify performance goals for the J\ ge nc y and to 
maintain systems to monitor performance against those goals. Plan. direct, coordinate, implemen t and evaluate the 
financial management systems and activities of the Agency with a budget of$18M. 
• Prepare/provides complete and accurate financial. statistica l, and accounting re con.ls for the Agene y and outs idc 

regulatory agencies. 
• As a member of the senior management team, assists in the formulation and execution of corporate fmance 

policies, objectives and programs. 
• Prepares program and agency budgets in conjunction with the CI~O and Program Directors. Plan . direct, 

coordinate, implement and cva luate fiscal pcrfrmnance reviews of Tri-County C'APs di\ is ions. 
• ll1rc, train , direct and cvalm11e employee performance within the department; recommend promotions and sa lary 

adjustments. 
• Provides supervision and direction for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring that all mortgages, leases and 

covenants are maintained fo1 Tri-County CAP"s f acilitics. Creation of five-year capital plan. 
• Reviews cash flows fo1 each division, monitor cash management practices, and monitor investments associated 

with each property. 
• Prepared five-year debt reduction plan. 

Fiscal Dircctor/lntctim CFO (2016- 2017) 

• D1rect and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts 
payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts and fixed assets. 

• Prepare and supervise the production offinuncial statements including Ba I a nee Sh cet, Revenue a nd Ex pc nse 
Reports, and Cost Summaries on a monthly and a1111ual basis. 

• Maintain proper accounting controls on i,rrants and contributions to cnsur~ accurate revenue 1cponing and expcnsi.! 
tracking to support periodic monitoring's by funders and auditors. 

• Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expense accounts are analy7.cd and reconciled periodically. 
• Collaborate with Division Directors to monitor departmental revenue and expenses versus budget 
• Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual financial repo11ing; and implementing 

departmental goals. 
• Prepare audit schedules for external auditors. 
• Collaborate with external audil<)rs in completing mmua l audit in a timely maimer. 

Al·counting Manager (2015-2016) 

Sr. Accountant (2013-2014) 
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUl\lE: 

KENT NUTRITION GROUP, JNC. (f/k/a Blue Seal Feeds, Inc.), Londonderry, NI I 03/ 1989-09/2010 
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Assistant Controller (2005-20 l 0) 

• Ensured an accurate and timely monthly and year end close, consisting of the preparation of a consolidated and 
individual financial statement in accordance with GAAP for nine manufacturing plants and 11 retail stores with 
!,'TOSS revenues in excess of $200M. Additional rcsponsihilitics included preparing journal entries, account 
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation. 

• Managed, trained, and supervised a staff accountant responsible for ensuring accurate journal en tries, in vcn tory 
reconciliation, tonnage tax returns, bank reconciliations, and assignment of specia I projects. 

• Oversaw all aspects of proprietary software, multi-state payroll sy:.tcm for 500 employees. Prepared a II f edera I 
and stale payroll tax reports, including quarterly and year-end returns.processing of W2s, and supcrv i si on of 
payroll clerk. 

• lnlcrfaccd with 18 \'arious banks throughout Ne\\' England and Mid-Atlantic area used as depositories. 
• Prepared multi-state sales/use tax rctmns and acted as point of contact for audits. 
• Pro-actively coached and consulted plant and store management on the annual budget development process. 
• Oversaw month-end accmals. 
• Assisted and responded to aud itors' requests on annual audit. 
• Filed annual franchise and abandon(.'(] property rcpons with appropriate states. 

Accounting Manager ( 1999-2005) 

Supported the Corporate Controller's initiatives by providing supervision and oversight to the Accounting fu net ion. 
Supervised and trained two accounts payable clerks on Chait of Accounts, Accounts Payable, timely and accurate 
processing and payment of vendor's invoices, employee travel reimbursements. and standard aeco1mtmg practices. 

Accountant/Pa~Toll Supervisor ( 1994-1999) 

Accountant ( 1989-1994) 

NORTHERN lTILECOM, INC., Concord, NI I 

Associate Results Accountant ( 1988-1989) 

Accounts Payable ( 1987-1988) 

RT>lJCATION 

Bachelor of Science, Accounting. FRANKLli\ PIERCECOLLEGE, Concord, NII 

05i 1987-03/1989 



REGAN L. PRIDE 

SIJMMARY 

My c)o.pericnce spans the fields of engineering. computer technology. 1..'duc:ition, and public administration. 
Thi~ unique combination brings a widt: array of knowledge and skills to the table for your organization I am a 
team player, a patient trainer, and adept at intcrper~onal relations 

REVELANT J<NOWLEDGE AND SKILL AREAS 

• Confidence in public speaking for business and technical apphcations, and instructional settings 
• Strong writing sk.ills and interpersonal communication skills, <1bility to teach others, and build consensus 
• Approachable, warm and personable style in teaching classes and interacting with colleagues 
• Robust education in mathematics, engineering and general science topics 
• Fluency with entire Microsoft Office application suite. 
• Fluency with AutoCAD computer-aided drafting software 
• Familiarity with Arc View GIS software. 
• Familiar with Avantc Enterprise Resource Planning software 
• ramiliar with BMSJ fund accounting and Avitar assessing/tax billing ~ofly,arc 
• Adept at Macromedin!Adobe Drcamwcavcr MX web site design sotlware 

WOIU< F:XPElUENCE 

NORTH COUl\ l RY COUNCIL REGIONAL PLAt\NJNG COMIS~lON, l ittlcton, NH 
Till E: Planncr, 2012-2013 i 2015-2018 
Managed ~olid waste technical assistance program funded by USDA Rurlll Development Conducted "Full Co~t 
Accounting" studies of municipal solid waste department operations Revic,\cd and updated operating plans for 
municipal solid waste facilities. Organi1ed household hawrdous \\aste collection rvents. Created and delivered 
training programs for solid \\:ISie operator ccnification .. Created pilot program~ to reduce 8:. divcn food Y.aste 
from landfill~ in 4 communities. 

:!013-2014 
INNOVATI\'[ STRUCl URAL OIJIJ Dll\G PRODUCl S 
1 JTLL: Project Manager 
Perfom1cd a variet~ of functions including business plan prcparnt1on and product development a~sociated with a 
start-up comp:iny in the engineered wood sheathing industl). I created engineering drawin~s, built and tc~ted 
protot}pcs, end assisted in marketing acth itic~ 

2000 - Present 
ICANIOO ENTERPRISCS, Li~bon, NII 
TITLE: Owner, Computer Applications Consultine 
Assistance and training with business and technical applications Created customited solutions irwolving 
i\utoCAU, MS Work, MS heel. MS Accc~s ~l,fl\\arc applications. I also rcrfonn \1eb 5ite HTML and CGJ 
development, hardwnre setup, upgmdl.)S, and troublcshoo11ng. 
Recent clients/projects include: 

Ne\1 hlgland Electric Wire Corp - Implementation of Avante MRP & APS scheduling soft\\arc, 
computerized \VIP label mg system, compuh:r worbtation mstallatiom, uscr.toperatm training. 

• Littleton, NH Senior Softball League - custom programm ing and support of statistical software 
Louisiana Corporate Credit Union Web site design and maintenance 
Brammer Creek. - Web site design for whole~ale food disll ibutor 



2006- 2012 
lOWN OJ· LISBON, 1'.H, Li~bon, NH 
TITLE: Town Adminislr..ator, Cl'M 
Prepared annual town budgets and performed presentations at budget hearing~ and town meeting. Prepared 
annual financial reports (MS·2, MS·4, MS·6) for the town. Generated tnx warrants, and water/sewer warrants. 
Analyzed water/sewer revenues and developed rate structuro;: to balance department's budget. Pcrfonned the 
funcrion~ of financial adminisrration. personnel management, grant administratio11, welfare administration, 
emergency managemc.-nt, and projecl management 

1990· 2000 8:.. 2004 - 2006 
NEW ENGLAND CATI IETER CORPORATION, Li~bon, NI I 
(Subsidial) of New England Wire ·1 echnologics) 
TITLE: Enginetr, Mcdkal Produrls 
Performed process engineering ~upport in the manufacture of wire-reinforced medical tubing including: 
equipment specification, process/procedure development, tool mg design, and statistical data analysis. 
Developed customized spreadsheets for product design, ond manufacturing procc~~ control 
I was also employed with the parent company as an engineer-'(' AD operator from 1990 to 2000. \\hile in this 
capacity, I led personal computer users groups. installed the first Ethernet network in the company engineering 
department. and developed computer file management systems and backup routines. 

2002- 2004 
SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE UNJT 35, Littleto11, l\H 
TJ1 LE: Distanre Learning Coordinator 
This po~ition involved collnboration with h:acher~ and &taf1 to develop inteructivc cducntional programs 
utili.dng distance learning/videoconferencing tcchnolog) Programs v.ere d1~tributcd between three high school 
campuses. Duties included setup, configuralion, operation and maintenance of videoconferencing endpoints, and 
operation of bridge/gateway at central office I served as \\Cbmastcr for SALi website I also performed variou.; 
computer support duties. 

FDllCATIO~/CEllTIFICAT!ONS 

'll I Bureau of Education and 1 raining 
CPM \ertificatc (Certified Pubic Manager) 

Universil} ofCallfom1n at lkrkcky, Cng111eering Departme111 
92 ~emestcr credits in Mechanical Fnginccrmg Major 

('ONTINtJlJl'iG EDUCATION 
NH Ccnificd Publi~ Supcrvisor program 
Radvision 11 232 trchnician coursc 
Six Sigma process control course b} Boston S~icnlllic Corp. 

• Exrrusion Theory course at University of Massachuscm, Lowell 

PROFESSIONAL & Cl\'IC ASSOCIATIONS 

• Board of Directors, Norlh ('(luntry Council Regional Planning Commission, 
Hcthlehcm, NI I, 2007-2012. Served as chnimian in 20 I I. 

• Grafton·Coos Regional Coordinatmg Council (for public trnnsit); Littleton. NH: 2009-:1012 
• MembcrofNHMMI\, NHGI OA, NHL\\AA 2006 2012 
• Board of Selectman: Lisbon, 1'.11 l\larch 2000-2006. ~cned ns chairman from 2002 to 2006. 
• Board of Directors, l isbon Main Street. Inc., Lisbon. NH; 2008 2012; 
• rconomic Restructuring Committee of I isbon Main Street Inc., 2002-prcsent 
• Member of Granite State Dist:incc I earning NctwNk, 2002-2004 

ru:Fi::nENcr:s 
Professional reference~ shall be produ(~d upt)n request und presented at time (If interyicw. 
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Knsty 
Letendre 

"If huma.11 li<'inrs ;,a pcrccin·d <is pol<'ntials rather thall prohlern~. a:­
possessing st1en~1hs lll'-tt:'<id of weakm·ss<'s, a~ unlimited r.ttlwr than dull 

and u nH•;;p1111<.1w ti c•n tl1t•y tlu iw and llJOI\ to their cap,1hili1i1•s.'· 

l :xpl'Iit·nc<• 

May 2019-Present 

Division Director re< · \ P. 1 m - 1'11 n 11111 >ll 

Jk,po1h1hk lo I""' i<k S1. lx.1ck1 ,Jijp awl on·1,1:;h1 lo 1)11 <k1< lop11H 111. 
<k,ti.:11. da1h op1·1 .11io11. tomphann·. and Jin.in< 1al sol1t 111 \ ol tlH pl!•J:l .llll' 
.11111 LH 1l11in 111ulc 1 1'1 nt111io11S11111 t'' 11hi< h i11d11dt ( :11a1 d1.111,!Jip Sn' in-,, 
I lon1t In' 1'10>;1.1111,, 111c li1du1i; l\k1 Bl.1m 11111111 It .'' Slll'ltt·1. ,111tl :\1hrnac I 
;1wl S11pprn I St 11 w1' lrn \'wtr111' ol Do111<·\llt \ '1oklH'l' .111d Snu.11 .h,a111i. 
llH lwhni: E111t 1g11111 Shi ltu St·111n·, ;it tl11 S11p1m11 ( 't·11t1·1 <it B11n h I lo11'< 

Sep\ 2018 PrcsC'nt 

Divi:;ion Operations Coordinator TC C.\I'. '111- l'u1t·1111011 

Jk,pnn,rhll 10111111111101111(\10111pli.11u 1· 11l g1 .111t dt lt1ualilt' .11111 k1;.1l l'llm.il 
llllt g1111· 111 Jll n~:1,11n' .111cl M'I 1 In'' olk1cd 1111011:4ho111 lh1 Din,101i. lh 'Jl01h1i>lt 

I<> 1•1111pik .111d .111a l ~·1t d11·1'io11 1b1t.1: 11·po11111g 11uub ;mcl <llll co111<"' lo SI. 
n1<u1.1g1'lllt·111 ,llJd lmal ... 1,1kd10ld1•1.,. H1 'flOll,ihk 10 1knlop, 1nin1. and 
11pd.111 pro;.:1;i111 1\11111·11 polil 1. p1ou·du10. ,11u l 1101k llo\\'. l ~1·,po11,ibl1· 1111 
p1 n gi;1111 <k1 dopllll'lll and "'l'I ,jglH. 

May20l 7· /1ui:ust 2018 

North Country SUD Continuum of Ca1e 'Facilitator I Lead Transition 
Coordinator :\01111 t "111111 111 I lt-.ihh Cn11,or1111111 

COCF: 'l'l1c :\01111 Co11tlll\ H1°1{1011\ dn1){11.1tl"d ~1;1tc h,11,011 H'.,po11~1hk lo 
II Ill k 1111li I q:1011;il kl' ,,1,1kt hol<h , , lo U)Jlcltl t I .1 u lll\fJI d1r11,iH ''''l" .IJ 111 g.IJJ' 

:111.tl1'1'; l<'Jl<>llill:.t h.11 k fi11d111g ' I<•:'\) I DI II I~ .111cl fanht.t ll lhr dnl'ioptlll'lll 
of ;i CO!llpll'IH ll\I\( pL111 alllH cl lo '11·alt ii H1h11 .. t. dh-< llll', ;111d \ll'll-
1 oon l m.111·d Cou1J111111111 of C.1a (CoCl 111 11 ll '\ 011 h Count n fo1 add11 ''" '14 
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DONNA M. C. KEDDY 

Career Objective: To utilize my experience in the Probate Forum to advocate for 

incapacitated individuals for the improvement of their quality of life. 

EMPLOYMENT: 

2003-Present -Tri-County CAP, Inc. Guardianship Services- Director 

Directorship approved by Board of Directors on 4 2 1 /2004 

Acting Director effective 5/13/2003 

1993-2003 - TCC/GS Assistant Director/Estate Supervisor 

1/01'1993-5/12/2003 - Duties include Management of the Estate and Trust Departments, direct 

supervision of five financial managers, ie: Estate Managers, Payee Specialist and Benefits 

Administrator. indirect supervision ofcntirc program staff as Director's dcsigncc. 111is position 

also includes carrying an Estate and Trust Caseload. 

1991-1992 -TCC/GS Estate Manager 

6/199 1-1 2/ 1992 - Duties included the development of a more efficient system to manage and 

account forwards resources. Continual training and understanding of the Probate System and all 

public assistance programs and systems, plus Social Security and Veteran Administrative 

systems. Also caiTicd an Estate and Payee Cast: load. Duties also included Ad ministrativc 

Program fonct ions. Direct super\'ision of estate and support staff. 

1988-1992 - TCC/GS Administrative Assistant/Staff Guardian 

1 J/1988-12/ 1992 - Duties included Administrative Program Functions, Payee Rcsponsibihties, 

and a guardianship caseload at Glcncliff Home for the Elderly. 

1985-1989 Bookkeeper for Diamond International Corporation 

Woodland Division based out of Lancaster/Groveton. NC\\ Hampshire 

EDUCATION: 

1973-1977 Ludlow High School, Business Study 

Ludlow. MA 

Nat ional Honor Society 



D Keddy*2 

CERTIFICATIONS: Member since 1988, Registered Guardian, Conference Presenter 

National Guardianship Foundation. National Master Guardian, Center for Guardianship 

Certification. 

Professional Qualifications and Background: 

*Development of comprehensive program policies and protocols for the establishment of Estate, 

Trust, Protective Payee, and Benefit Management Services for statc-w id e public 

guardianship program with oversight of the associate director, staff guard ians, estate and 

benefit staff in both Whitefield and Concord offices. 

*Consultat ion se1vices to family guard ians and individ uals either considering 

Guardianship over a loved one or cd ucat ion regarding guardianship standards 

and responsibilities both on a fee-for-service basis and as a professional 

courtesy to the Probate Cou11 and the general public. 

*Member of the National Guardianship Association (NGA) from 1988 to present. 

*Certified as a National Registered Guardian through the NGA in 1997. 

*Presenter at the National Guardianship Conference in Arlington, Virginia 1998. 

Topic: The Keys ofr.statc Management ''The First Ninety "Days". 

*Selected by Judge Maher, then Administrative Probate Judge. to be on his 

con11nittec to produce a handbook to gu ide, assist, and provide resources to 

individuals that are responsible for making health care decision for others. 

''Making Med ical Decisions for Someone Else: A New Hampshire Handbook (2007). 

*Appointed to Judge King's Task Force on Professional Guardians 6/24/2008. 

Purpose: need to ensure that the guardians serving the vulnerable population arc held to high 

professional and ethical standards and have adequate education, training and experience. (Article 

in Coos County Democrat July 2, 2008). l11e NH House passed the proposed legislation for the 

amendment on RSA 464-A: I 0 on 5/20/2009. 

*Cc1tified as a National Master Guardian through the Center for Guardianship 

Certificat ion on 4/1/20I0. 



JAYNE ELIZABETH MCCABE 

Career Objective: 

To work for a customer 01ientatcd human se1Y1ccs organi7ation that enables me to utilize 

a variety of leadershir and management skills in a challenging setting. 

EMPLOYMENT: 

8198- present TRI-COUNTY CAP, INC., GUARDIANSHIP SERVICES 

Associate Director - 4/04 to present 

Duties include assisting the Director in the O\ era II management of the program, supervision of 

staff guardians. training and orientation of staff, 

and quality assurance act iv it ics. Managing assigned case load. 

Senior Staff Guardian- 11 /02 to 4/04 

Duties included direct supervision of7 staffguardians, stafftraining and orientation, and 

working'' ith the progwm management team. 

Staff Cuardian- 8/98 to 10/02 

Duties included making medical and treatment decisions fo1 im:apacitatcd adults, working with 

treatment teams from a \'aricty of community agencies. and ach ocacy. 

4/83- 11198 MOORE CENTERSER\'ICES INC. 

Self Determination and Special Projects Director- 2198 to 11 r98 

Primary responsibilities included coordmation of regional sclf-dctc1mination project a pa11 of a 

state-wide grant from the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation. Prima1y focus included developing 

n data collection S)Stem. facilitating necessary tra111111g, and identification of systems issues 

which impacted the ability of the consumers to exercise choice and control. Secondaiy 

n:sponsibilities included coo rd mat ion of' regional quality assurnnce act iv1t 1cs. 



JE McCabe *2 

Quality Assurance Director- 11 /93 to 2/98 

Areas of authority included coordination of regional quality assurnncc activities; coordination of 

regional client rights activities mcluding complaint in\'est1gation, problem resolution and trend 

analysis; and, coordination ofrcgional staff development and training act iv it ics. 

Director of Regional Residential Ser\'iccs- 2/88-1 I /93 

Areas of authority 111cludcd directing programmatic support and admirnstrative services for 

residential programs services 127 indn iduals within a seven community region; management of 

owned and lease propc11y; negotiating and monitoring subcontracts; fomrnlation and 

management of program bud get. 

Residential Supervisor- 3/86 lo 2188 

Supervision of staffed residences; rec111itrnent, training and supervision of private residential 

providers; and. coordination of quality assurance and licensing activities. 

Various other positions within the agency- 4/83 to 3186 

FDUCATION: 

191'6 NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE. Manchester. New Hampshire 

M.S., Iluman Sen ices Administration 

1983 SAINT Al\SEL!\1 COLLEGE. Goflsto"11, NH 

U.S .. Criminal Justice 

CERTIFICATIONS: 

Center for Guardianship Certification: 

Nat ion al Master Guardian 4 '20 I 0 to present 

National Certified Guardian 10/ 1999 to 42010 
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Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. 

Key Personnel 
Guardianship Services 

FY2021 

Job Title Salary 

Chief Executive Officer $115,000 
Chief Financial Officer $75,000 
Chief OperatinQ Officer $70,000 
Division Director $53,000 
Director GS $59,862 
Associate Director GS $48,443 

% Paid from 
th is Contract 

0% 
0% 

. ·- . 
0% 
0% 

25% 
65% __ ,_ 

---

Amount Paid from 
this Contract 

0 - .. -
0 
0 
0 . 

$14,965.50 -
$31,487.95 

-


